
 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Date: Tuesday, 12 July 2022 
Time: 10.00 am 
Venue: Council Chamber, County Hall, Dorchester, DT1 1XJ 
 

Members (Quorum )  

Emma Parker, Kate Wheller and Les Fry 
 
Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, County Hall, Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1XJ  

 

For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services  
Meeting Contact  01305 224202 elaine.tibble@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting, apart from any items listed in 
the exempt part of this agenda. 

 
For easy access to all the council’s committee agendas and minutes download the free 
public app called Modern.Gov for use on any iPad, Android, and Windows tablet.  Once 

downloaded select Dorset Council. 
 

 
 

Agenda 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND STATEMENT FOR THE 

PROCEDURE OF THE MEETING 

 

3 - 6 

 To elect a Chairman for the meeting and the Chairman to present and 

explain the procedure for the meeting.  
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES 

 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 

 To disclose any pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable interests 
as set out in the adopted Code of Conduct. In making their disclosure 

councillors are asked to state the agenda item, the nature of the 
interest and any action they propose to take as part of their declaration. 
If required, further advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer 

in advance of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
4.   URGENT ITEMS 

 
 

 To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior 
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b) 

of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall be 
recorded in the minutes. 
 

 

5.   APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE FOR PART OF 
WEYMOUTH BAY HOLIDAY PARK 

 

7 - 190 

 Haven Leisure Limited have applied for a new premises licence to 
cover an outdoor area. The application has attracted a large number of 

representations from members of the public and must therefore be 
considered by a Sub-Committee.  

 

 

6.   EXEMPT BUSINESS 

 
 

 To move the exclusion of the press and the public for the following item 
in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the 

meaning of paragraph x of schedule 12 A to the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended).  

The public and the press will be asked to leave the meeting whilst the 
item of business is considered. 

 

 

 
 



 
 
THE LICENSING ACT 2003 (HEARINGS) REGULATIONS 2005 

 

Rights of a Party 

 
1. A party has the right to attend the hearing and may be represented by any 

person.  

2. A party is entitled to give further information where the authority has asked 
for clarification. 

3. A party can question another party, and/or address the authority, with 
consent of the authority.   

 

Failure to Attend 
 

4. If the authority is informed a party does not wish to attend, the hearing may 
proceed in their absence.  

5. If a party has not indicated their attendance and fails to attend the hearing 

may be adjourned if considered in the public interest, or hold the hearing 
ensuring the party’s representation is considered.  

6. Where the authority adjourns the hearing it shall notify the parties of the 
date, time and place.  

 

Procedural Information 
 

7. At the start of the hearing, the authority shall explain the procedure which 
it proposes to follow and shall consider any request for permission for 
another person to appear at the hearing. 

8. A hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority and 
cross-examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considers 

that it is required.  
9. The authority will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 

which to speak.  

10. The authority may require any person behaving disruptively to leave, and 
may refuse that person to return, but such a person may, before the end of 

the hearing, submit in writing information they would have been entitled to 
give orally had they not been required to leave. 

 
FOOTNOTE: 
 

In relation to all other matters governed by the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 any party or their representative may contact the Licensing 
Services at Dorset Council and they will be provided with a full copy of the 

regulations on request. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 

 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 

 
1. At the start of the meeting the Chairman will introduce: 

 the members of the sub-committee 

 the council officers present 

 the parties and their representatives 

 
2. The Chairman will then deal with any appropriate agenda items. 

 
3. The Licensing Officer will be asked to outline the details of the application,   

including details of any withdrawn representations.  

 
4. The applicant or their representative is then invited to present their case. 

 
5. Committee members will be invited to ask questions. 
 

  6. Where appropriate the Responsible Bodies e.g. representatives of Police, 
Fire Services, Environmental Services or Trading Standards will be invited 

to address the sub-committee on any relevant representations they may 
have. 

 

7. The Chairman may then allow an opportunity for questions. 
 

8. The Chairman will ask any person who has made representations, who 
have already expressed a wish to do so, to address the sub-committee.  
The sub-committee will have read all the papers before them, including 

any letters of representation.  Members of the public are asked to keep 
their comments concise and to the point. 

 
9. All parties will be given the opportunity to “sum up” their case. 
 

10. The Chairman will ask the Legal Advisor if all relevant points have been 
addressed before advising all parties present that the sub-committee will 

withdraw from the meeting to consider its decision in private.  The sub-
committee will be accompanied by the Democratic Services Officer and 
the Legal Advisor can be called upon to offer legal guidance. 

 
11. The Chairman will: 

 

 advise when the sub-committee’s decision will be confirmed in 
writing.  

 Inform those present of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court. 
 

Page 4



 
NOTE 

 

The Chairman may vary this procedure, as circumstances require but will have 

regard to the rules of natural justice and the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005. 
 

The meeting will take place in public.  However, the public can be excluded 
from all or part of the meeting where the sub-committee considers that the 

public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the meeting or that 
part of the meeting, taking place in public. 
 

Under no circumstances must the parties or their witnesses offer the sub-
committee information in the absence of the other parties. 

 
The Chairman and the Sub-Committee have discretion whether to allow new 
information or documents to be submitted and read at the meeting. 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Licensing Sub-Committee 

12 July 2022 

Application for a New Premises Licence for part of 
Weymouth Bay Holiday Park 
 

For Decision 

Portfolio Holder:  Cllr L Beddow, Culture, Communities and Customer Services
  

Local Councillor(s): Cllrs L O’Leary and T Ferrari 

Executive Director: J Sellgren, Executive Director of Place  

 

     
Report Author: Aileen Powell 

Title: Licensing Team Leader  
Tel: 01258 484022  
Email: aileen.powell@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 
 

Report Status:  Public 

 
Brief Summary:  Haven Leisure Limited have applied for a new premises licence to cover 

an outdoor area. The application has attracted a large number of representations from 

members of the public and must therefore be considered by a Sub-Committee. 

 
Recommendation:  The Sub-Committee must determine the application after considering 

the written received during the consultation period and the oral evidence given at the 
hearing and resolve to take such steps as it considers appropriate and proportionate for 

the promotion of the licensing objectives of; - 
 

a) The prevention of crime and disorder 
b) The prevention of public nuisance 

c) Public safety 
d) The protection of children from harm 

 

 
Reason for Recommendation:   The Sub-Committee must consider the oral 
representations and information given at the hearing before reaching a decision.             

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

https://apps.geowessex.com/stats/


 
1. Background 

1.1 Section 4 of the Licensing Act sets out the duties of the Licensing Authority, 

it sets out that a Council’s licensing functions must be carried out with a 

view to promoting the four licensing objectives of: 

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 

(b) public safety; 

(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and 

(d) the protection of children from harm. 

1.2 9.2. All applications and decisions are made with due regard to the Licensing 

Act 2003 (the Act), the Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the 

Licensing Act 2003 (the Guidance) and the Dorset Council Statement of 

Licensing Policy (the Policy). 

1.3 The relationship between planning and licensing is set out in paragraphs 
6.2 and 6.3 of the Policy: - 

 
The use of premises for the sale or provision of alcohol, regulated 

entertainment or late-night refreshment is subject to planning 
control. Such use will require planning permission or must 
otherwise be lawful under planning legislation. Planning 

permission is generally required for the establishment of new 
premises or the change of use of premises. 

 
In line with the S182 Guidance the planning and licensing 
regimes involve consideration of different (albeit related) matters. 

Licensing committees are not bound by decisions made by a 
planning committee, and vice versa. 

 
 

2. Details of the Application 

2.1 Haven Leisure Limited has applied for a new premises licence to cover an outdoor 

stage and a Container Bar at the Weymouth Bay Holiday Park, Preston Road, 

Weymouth, DT3 6BQ. 

2.2 The application form and a location plan are attached at Appendix 1 and include 

the following description of the premises: -  

Outdoor stage and container bar area located within the Weymouth Bay 

Holiday Park which already holds premises licences for the main complex 

and supermarkets. The area is shown edged red on drawing 3197.4.01 

deposited with the application. 

The external stage, which has been orientated away from residential 

premises, to be used to provide entertainment for holiday makers including 

Page 8



but not limited to film nights, children’s entertainment, and live music 

entertainment limited to vocalists and acoustic sets. 

An acoustic report is being prepared and its recommendations will be 

followed including the siting of a noise limiter. The Regulated Entertainment 

will only be provided between the Friday which is three weeks before Good 

Friday to the last day in October each year. 

2.3 Following consultation between the Licensing Authority and the applicant the plan 

has been re-submitted with a change to the position of the container bar to move it 

further away from residents, and the addition of a restricted area for the sale of 

alcohol. The effect of this is that the relief from conditions allowed by the Live Music 

Act 2012 will not apply to the entertainment area and the suggested conditions 

contained in the operating schedule will apply regardless of the size of the 

audience. The original plan and the amended plan are attached at Appendix 2. 

2.4 The times applied for are:  

Regulated entertainment every day between  11:00 and 21:00  

Three occasions per week films between  11:00 and 23:00  
On and off sales of alcohol every day between  11:00 and 23:00  
 

2.5 There is a proposed a set of conditions within the operation schedule which have 
been amended to reflect the correct Council and are attached at Appendix 3. 

 
2.6 The application has been advertised on the premises in line with the regulations 

which requires one notice to be placed on the premises. It has also been advertised 

in a newspaper circulating in the area and on the Council’s web site.  
 

2.7 The application has been circulated to the following Responsible Authorities: - 

 
Dorset Police 

Dorset Fire and Rescue Service 
Dorset Council – Public Health (Primary Care Trust)  

Dorset Council – Environmental Health (Health and Safety) 
Dorset Council – Environmental Protection 

Dorset Council – Planning Authority 
Dorset Council – Children’s Services, Social Care and Health 
Dorset Council - Trading Standards 
Home Office Immigration Enforcement 

 

3. Representations 

3.1 None of the Responsible Authorities have made representations or commented on 

the application. 

  

Page 9



 

3.2 160 representations have been made by people living in the vicinity of the premises. 

The representations are attached in full at Appendix 4. All of the representations 

relate to nuisance from noise, in addition to the potential frequency of intrusion of 

the noise references are made to the constant thump of bass and pounding music, 

the volume of the music, its frequency with many fearing it will be a daily occurrence 

every week throughout the summer. Some of the representations also mention light 

pollution, management issues and issues with the keeping of records. All of these 

are relevant considerations relating to the licensing objectives. 

3.3 In addition, there are some matters which do not relate to the licensing objectives 

but are matters that should be considered under the planning application. These are 

matters include those relating to need, wildlife, parking and highways issues.  

3.4 Some of the representations include suggestions such as limiting the frequency of 

the events, and a very wide communication of events.  

 

4. Further Information 

4.1 The applicant has submitted a number of documents after receipt of the 

representations, these consist of: - 

a) The revised plan 
b) Noise Assessment Report 

c) Visuals of a similar stage area at Caister Holiday Park 
d) Mock up plan drawing showing the area where the activities are to go, 

together with a mock-up of what it would look like should the activities be 
there 

e) Plan of the outdoor stage and screen 

f) Visuals of the container bar 
g) Google Map view of the route from Seaview to Weymouth Bay Caravan Park 

h) Letter from Katie Watson to local residents sent on 31st May 2022 
 

The documents are attached at Appendix 5. 

 

5. Considerations 

5.1 Paragraphs 9.42 to 9.44 of the Section 182 Guidance sets how the Authority should 

decide what actions are appropriate. 
 

“9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All 

licensing determinations should be considered on a case-by-case basis. They 

should take into account any representations or objections that have been 

Page 10



received from responsible authorities or other persons, and representations 

made by the applicant or premises user as the case may be.  

 

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to 

what it is intended to achieve.  

 
9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion 

of the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would 

be suitable to achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing 

authority to decide that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should 

aim to consider the potential burden that the condition would impose on the 

premises licence holder (such as the financial burden due to restrictions on 

licensable activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of 

the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that the authority ensures that 

the factors which form the basis of its determination are limited to consideration 

of the promotion of the objectives and nothing outside those parameters. As 

with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing authority should 

consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place to mitigate 

potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the 

track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate 

when imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. 

The licensing authority is expected to come to its determination based on an 

assessment of the evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against 

making the determination.” 

5.2 The steps that the Sub-Committee may take are:  

a) To grant the licence subject to such conditions as the authority considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and the mandatory 

conditions. 
b) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which 

the application relates. 
c) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the designated premises 

supervisor. 

d) To reject the application. 
 

6. Financial Implications 

6.1 Any decision of the Sub-Committee could lead to an appeal by any of the parties 

involved that could incur costs. 
 

7. Climate Implications 

None 

Page 11



8. Well-being and Health Implications  

None 

9. Other Implications 

None 

10. Risk Assessment 

10.1 HAVING CONSIDERED: the risks associated with this decision; the level of risk has 

been identified as: 

Current Risk: Low 

Residual Risk: Low 

 

11. Equalities Impact Assessment 

 

Not applicable 

12. Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Application 
Appendix 2 - Plans  
Appendix 3 - Proposed Conditions 

Appendix 4 - Representations from other parties 
Appendix 5 - Documents from Applicant 

 
13. Background Papers 

Licensing Act   

Section 182 Guidance   
Dorset Council Licensing Policy 

 
  
 

 

Page 12

https://dorsetcc-my.sharepoint.com/personal/kate_critchel_dorsetcouncil_gov_uk/Documents/New%20folder%20(2)/There#Equalities
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/part/3/crossheading/variation-of-licences
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/35024/391427/Dorset+Council+Statement+of+Licensing+Policy+Final++01-02-2021.pdf/799cf2e1-4af1-b9e8-4858-1f1b102554d5


Page 13

aileen.powell
Typewriter
Appendix 1



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 33

aileen.powell_1
Typewriter
Appendix 2 - Plans



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 - Conditions Consistent with The Operating Schedule 
 

1. The premises will operate on a system whereby a record is maintained of refusals to serve 

alcohol. 

 

2. Records will be kept of staff training. The records will be made available for inspection by 

officers of Responsible Authorities immediately on request and all such records to be 

retained at the premises for at least 12 months. 

 

3. A radio will be used to keep in contact with other premises on the park providing licensable 

activities. 

 

4. Container Bar Only – CCTV to be provided inside the container bar detailed on drawing 

3197.5.10 with camera positioning outwards. 

 

5. Container Bar Only – Polycarbonate glasses/Flexi vessels to be used at the container bar 

detailed on drawing 3197.5.10. 

 

6. The outdoor area is to be operated and maintained in accordance with the Company’s 

policies, procedures, and risk assessments. 

 

7. Any Regulated Entertainment provided in the outdoor area shown on drawing 3197.5.10 

and edged in blue will only be provided between the Friday which is three weeks before 

Good Friday in each calendar year and the end of October in each calendar year.  

 

8. There will be no Regulated Entertainment in the form of karaoke provided in the outdoor 

area on drawing 3197.5.10 and edged blue. 

 

9. Live Music in the outdoor area shown on drawing 3197.5.10 and edged blue to be limited to 

live vocalists and acoustic sets. 

 

10. A contact telephone number and email address will be provided to nearby local residents, 

which number will be contactable by residents during any Regulated Entertainment 

provided within the area shown on drawing 3197.5.10 edged in blue. A record of complaints 

will be retained on the Park, together with a summary of what action has been taken in 

respect of the complaint and such record will be made available to the Licensing Authority 

on request. These records will be retained for at least 12 months 

 

11. Monitoring at identified points shall be carried out during Regulated Entertainment in the 

outdoor area shown on drawing 3197.5.10 and edged blue. The monitoring shall be carried 

out at frequent periods throughout the period of Regulated Entertainment and if a 

complaint of noise were to be received during the operating hours of the Regulated 

Entertainment in the outdoor area shown on drawing 3197.5.10 and edged blue appropriate 

action shall be taken promptly to reduce noise nuisance to nearby local residents.  

 

Page 37



12. The Licence Holder or nominated person shall maintain a “noise incident log” of key actions, 

resident complaints to the premises, and any noise interventions. This is to be made 

available to Authorised Officers on request. 

 

13. A sound limiting device shall be fitted to any musical amplification system in the outdoor 

area shown on drawing 3197.5.10 and edged blue and set at a level to be agreed with and 

authorised officer of the Environmental Protection Team of Dorset Council to ensure that no 

noise nuisance is caused to residents. The operational panel of the sound limiting device 

shall be secured to the satisfaction of the authorised office. The sound limiting device shall 

not be altered without the prior agreement of the Environmental Protection Team of Dorset 

Council. The sound limiting device may be reviewed and adjusted by the Environmental 

Protection Team of Dorset Council should substantiated complaints of nuisance be received 

from residents. 

 

14. Any Regulated Entertainment or activity using the amplified sound system provided in the 

outdoor area shown on drawing 3197.5.10 and edged blue shall be played through the 

approved sound limiting equipment. 

 

15. All staff will be trained in the importance of their responsibilities in ensuring that customers 

who request alcohol are over 18. 

 

16. The premises will adopt a “Challenge 25” policy and any person wishing to purchase a lcohol 

who appears to be under 25 will be asked to produce an acceptable form of identification 

(photographic driving licence, passport PASS accredited and/or armed forces card).  

 

 

 

Page 38



REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED FROM ‘OTHER PERSONS’ 

 

1. 
 
 I have seen a notice that the above are applying for a Premises licence for an outdoor stage and 
container bar area. 
They intend to use the area for live music  from Monday to Sunday from 11am to 21.00 throughout 
the whole year. 
As I live in Preston, I will be subjected to music that I don’t want to hear on a regular basis. Most 
people enjoy listening to music, but in their own time, and not when it imposed on you by an outside 
source. 
I would like to raise my object to this application and trust you will log my objection before the Council 
meeting about the License. 
Thanking you
 

2.  

 

We wish to register our objection to to the request for a licence for the above. 

The noise pollution of  having live and recorded music and films, from 11.00 am until 9pm every day 

throughout the summer months will be detrimental to our mental health and well being, should this 

licence application be granted as it stands.. 

We have lived in Seven Acres Road for over thirty years and we are fully aware of how sound travels 

up from the Haven site, especially as the prevailing winds are southwesterly. The area acts as a 

natural amphitheatre and the sounds are therefore amplified beyond reasonable acceptance, which 

will cause unnecessray nuisance every day to local residents. 

We are also suspicious of the way Haven have behaved in the way they have placed notices of the 

application. in that they are not readily accessable and easily seen by the general public. We 

personally believe the reference to acoustic is a red herring. It doesn't take a lot of imagination to 

recognise that this will be just a small part of what actually occurs every day 

We give notice we wish to attend the meeting on Tuesday 14th June to register our objections 

personally. 

Yours faithfully 

 

3. 
 
 I understand that there is an application in from Haven Campsite for an outdoor stage and container 
bar area at Weymouth Bay Campsite. 
 
I am totally 100% against this as it is going to cause uncontrolled noise and rowdy behaviour. It is not 
the sort of thing we want in Preston. 
If they want this type of thing then they should go into Weymouth town. Preston is a residential area 
and it will be spoilt for ever. 
 

Page 39



 

4.  
 
Sir 
I have seen a notice tucked away in a very obscure place that the above venue are applying for a 
premises licence for a outdoor stage and bar area. 
These premises have ample area for entertainment and alcohol sales without more. 
They intend to use the are for live music Monday to Sunday from 1100 until 2100 thought the whole 
year. 
As I live in Preston I will be subject to loud music I do not to won’t to hear on a daily basis. 
I would like to raise my objection to this application and trust you will log my objection before the 
council meeting about this license. 
My thanks 

 

 

5.  

Dear Cllr O’Leary 

 

We received a pamphlet through the  mail about an application from haven campsite for a premises 

licence for an outdoor stage and container bar area at Weymouth Bay Campsite.   

 

We understand that being a holiday campsite, people staying there want a bit of fun. 

 

However, consideration has to be had for those residing nearby such as my family and me.  We live 

just opposite the entrance to Weymouth Bay Campsite and as you would expect,  there are a lot of 

vehicular and human traffic going in and out, and along the A353.  There was a recent staged music 

event held there and my family and I could hear the sound despite having double glazed 

windows.  The matter of noise is very critical for us and we should not have to endure the din at night 

as well.  Perhaps if the stage and outdoor bar are constructed closer to the beach side, we would not 

hear it. We don’t know this for sure but it could lessen the noise or might not even be within earshot.   

 

Nevertheless, as a result of our experience of the recent event held there and as we believe the 

area  has already been designated for the campsite and bar, the noise is regrettably going to affect 

our lives negatively.  My family and I do strongly oppose the application for this premises licence. 

 

Kind regards 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 

6.  

 

To whom it may concern, 

 

My husband and I, who live on Fisherbridge Road, Preston Weymouth with our young daughter have 

recently been made aware of a planning application from Haven to license an outdoor stage, bar area 

etc. 

 

As residents we would like to strongly object on the following grounds: 

 

We do not feel that a license for live music /films etc on this large scale, despite allocated hours, 

should be granted so near to a residential area and properties. Noise polution needs to be seriously 

considered, and reflection as to whether if you were to live in such near proximity to the site you 

would wish to have this taking place.  

 

This area, although already heavily populated with holiday campsites, is predominantly residential and 

also home to wildlife, again the noise polution of this premises license needs to be considered. We do 

not want to be subjected to sound polution of films, music in the evenings, where by at present we 

can enjoy the sound of birds etc.  

 

It should be noted that on our road Fisherbridge Road, over the river Jordan is a protected area which 

has a thriving colony of bats, again a huge concern would be the impact of noise levels on this wildlife 

and habitat. Surely now, with the current technoclogies and scientific advances which have clearly 

shown the time is now to ensure we make changes to how we respect, protect and use the planet as 

a population we need to be priorisiting the right things to sustain and protect our natural world. 

Live/music and films for customers at a caravan park against protection of wildlife and habitats? 

Surely there is no contest. 

 

We also feel it is not appropriate or necessary to provide this facilty to holiday makers at the expense 

of the local residents who reside in this area all year round. 

 

An effort needs to be made to protect the area, for wildlife and for preservation of a quiet, enjoyable 

place to live. 

 

A final concern is that it appears the building of an outdoor stage area has already taken place ... 

surely if this is the case that is done without permission, and needs to be addressed. 

 

Please pass these concerns on to the relevant people. I have cc'd in our local councillor for reference. 

 

With our regards, 

Page 41



 

 

7. 

 

 Good evening, 

 

Following a notification that I've received, I understand that there will be a debate on whether or not 

Haven (Weymouth Bay) can entertain their guests outside with live/recorded music. I feel I must 

strongly object to this as this will cause nuisance to the local neighbourhoods. On many occasions, 

music and entertainment has been heard from my property by the Haven park and it has been so loud 

and intrusive that I have felt like complaining to them. This has even happened in the past couple of 

weeks. As much as it may provide a great atmosphere for their guests staying in the park, it is equally 

annoying to the hundreds (if not thousands) of neighbouring residents who wish to enjoy the peace 

and tranquility of their own outside space. I have a child with Asperger Syndrome who struggles with 

loud noise and my wife is a nurse who does long shifts and therefore it is important to have a peaceful 

home to return to each day. We also have pets that are sensitive to noise, not to mention the 

surrounding wildlife. Further to this, I do not want the value of my property to decrease. 

Weymouth Bay do not need this outside stage as they have an indoor stage like most other holiday 

parks of which contains the noise appropriately. Preston is one of the nicer parts of Weymouth and I 

feel very lucky to live in such a pleasant place and I do not want this ruined by unnecessary sound 

pollution.  

Unfortunately, I am unable to make the Town Council meeting on Tuesday 14th but I hope my email 

is enough to stop this matter from being passed.  

If you wish to discuss this matter further, please contact me. 

 

Kind regards, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 

8.  

My main objection is the live and recorded music 

In the past i have complained to HAVEN WEYMOUTH BAY about the loud music and shouting at 

their outside live events 

loud sounds travel a long way 

As most holiday makers only stay for 1 week i do not see why the residents in the area must be 

subjected to loud live and recorded music every day 

it is very unfair considering we live here all the time 

 

9. 
 
 I WISH TO OBJECT TO THE PROPOSED HAVEN CAMPSITE OUTDOOR STAGE AND 
CONTAINER BAR AREA AT WEYMOUTH BAY HOLIDAY CAMP PRESTON, REASON BEING THE 
NOISE POLLUTION AND TOTAL DISREGARD TO RESIDENTS LIVING IN THIS VILLAGE. 
 SIigned:
                 
                
 

 

10.  

Dear Dorset Council 

We wish to strongly object to the planning application by Weymouth Bay Holiday Park to have music, 

film and general entertainment potentially every day from April to October beween the hours of 11am 

and 11pm. 

The occasional music events are generally tolerated by local residents though even then the music 

can be aggravating and volume not always controlled, particularly as the main sound is the ‘thump 

thump thump’ of the base.  Do not underestimate the noise disruption that loud outside music causes 

and the distance that it travels – my estimate would be disturbance to a radius of 1.5 mile (the 

distance from Weymouth Holiday Park to Overcombe Roundabout) and all of Preston and Sutton 

Poynes. 

To have this constantly for 6 months would be quite unbearable and have further consequences. 

Sleep.  While the local population is mainly elderly (who do need their sleep as well) there are a 

number of younger families with young children as well as in the Holiday Park itself. Putting them 

down to sleep is not going to go well with music blaring out till 11.00pm.  Workers in the area, some of 

whom have early start times, will also be affected by the daily dose of noisy music to the late hours. 

Page 43



Housing.  Selling of houses will be difficult with potential buyers being aware that they would face loud 

music 12 hours a day for the 6 summer months.  In consequence house values in the area will be 

compromised – of considerable concern to the older population as their house represents an 

important part of their retirement planning. 

Regards 

 

11.  

Dear Sirs 

 

Looking at the Detailed Responses to this Application or lack of them associated with us , the local 

population , the detail of the Permission granted will be down to the Licensing Committee . 

 

My home address is and are affected by loud AMPLIFIED NOISE from 

the Main Entertainments Centre , usually the Lido part and the outdoor terrace and bar which 

broadcasts in our Residential direction .  

 

Haven  do not control their Entertainments Acts or personnel very well and regular , especially on 

weekends , turn up the Amplified sound to ‘ setting 11’ . We have just had an entire set piece over the 

Jubilee Celebrations full-on for quite some length of time under the Guise of a Street Party . 

 

In the past after local residents complained about noise coming from the Lido and the south Terrace 

Bar , Haven covered in the Lido which reduced the noise down to tolerable levels . 

 

So History will repeat itself unless you , the Licensing Committee , get a grip on this and save us , the 

Local Residents , having to club together and take on Haven with litigation under Noise Abatement . 

Haven have a Licence to sell alcohol in the Entertainments Building , they don’t need another for 

Outside Entertainment and as for Music , you could limit that to the hours of 11 am to 10pm for 

Weekends and Bank Holidays just the same as you do for other Outdoor Events and Shows . Haven 

are proposing this Outdoor Entertainments Area close to their Wildlife Conservation Area for which 

they dragged in David Bellamy to give it authenticity . Well that has not lasted very long has it ? 

Holiday Parks don’t make any money out of Wildlife Conservation . 

 

I trust you can give some support to us the Local Residents in your Licencing Conditions . 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

Page 44



12.  
 
We wish to lodge an objection to the above application for the following reasons: 
We have not lived in Halstock close long but we have already noticed the amount of cars that use the 
close as a drop off point and carpark during the day and late at night to use the footpath entrance, this 
will only get worse as the Seaview camp will also use this close as a carpark not only holiday makers 
use this but also staff. I can see this as a problem as where and how they park  would prevent any 
Emergency services from entering the close. 
The noise level will be a nuisance to Halstock Close and surrounding areas and a greater nuisance to 
residence living in Fisherbridge as the noise from a open stage will travel it will sound like we are at a 
festival every day and night.   
                                                        Yours Sincerely 
                                                                                   
 

 

13. 
 
Good Afternoon 
 
Please could you log that i disagree with the application for a premises licence for an outdoor stage & 
container bar area at Weymouth Bay campsite including live & recorded music. I have lived in Preston 
my whole life & I am fully aware of the current noise levels during the open season. From where i live i 
can hear the loudness of people & drunk people. I hear the music & even the small arcade machines. 
I think  personally this is enough to have to put up with already. So please reject this application & 
don’t make our lives any worse. We have all been through enough already.  
 
Kind regards  

Sent from my iPhone 
 

 

14.  

Please be aware of my strong objection to live and recorded music for outdoor stage and container 

bar which would cause an unacceptable disturbance due to the volume of noise carried to our 

personal space. 

Previous events which have been held have been too loud as it can be heard throughout our home. 

This is not acceptable to permanently affect surrounding residents just for the entertainment of the 

camps short stay guests. 

 

Page 45



 

15.  

                                                                                                                      Sir,    Reference application 

at Weymouth bay campsite for outdoor stage and bar area, this would cause a lot of noise polution for 

the residents of Preston village though out  summer period. I would like to think people are enjoying 

their selves but not at the detriment of others,this this about making money without any thought for 

residents living 

nearby.                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                   

 Yours,                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                              

 

16.  

 

We would like to register our strongest objections to the all day performing of live music at above 

venue. 

They had some at Jubilee party last week and it was beyond acceptability for a few hours let alone all 

day every day. 

Regards 

 

17.  

 

Dear Sirs, 

 

I object to the application based on the following concern:  

 

The location is extremely close to quiet residential housing on all sides.  An inside music venue 

whether live or recorded would of course be no problem. 

 

Yours sincerely,  

 

Page 46



 

18.  

Dear Sirs 

I wish to object to the proposal at Weymouth Bay. We overlook this site and have in the past suffered 

from music being played on the campsite during the daytime arrival periods of their guests. After 

objections from a number of the local residents this was quietened down. A resumption on a frequent 

basis would be very objectionable to the many retired and elderly residents of the hill side opposite 

the site especially as it is obviously that it would extend into the late evening. No matter which 

direction the stage would be placed, with the site surrounded by hills and the direction of the onshore 

and prevailing winds the whole of our area of Preston and Sutton Poyntz would suffer from noise 

pollution. 

Regards 

 

19.  
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
We wish to lodge an objection to the above application for the following 
reasons: 
 
At the entrance to the Public Footpath in Halstock Close and despite this not being a business 
entrance for the Holiday Park we have, for many years now, experienced holidaymakers and staff 
being dropped off and picked up during the day and late into the evening including in some instances 
drunken behaviour and this will undoubtedly increase to an unacceptable level of noise and nuisance 
if this license is granted in its currently proposed form. Visitors from the sister camp Seaview also use 
this Public Footpath to access the camp and this license will exacerbate the issue with the new stage 
including the drinking area both early in the evening and late at night well after the venue has closed.  
In addition the movement of beer crates, barrels and such other related paraphernalia late at night will 
cause noise nuisance and disturbance to residents further into the Close as well. Parking is already at 
best an issue since both Haven staff and holiday park visitors use Halstock Close as a parking area 
and this will increase with people traveling down from the sister camp such that, as we have 
experienced in the past, dangerous and double parking will occur. This we have reported to the police 
in the past due to a near miss with a child exiting the footpath into the path of an oncoming vehicle. 
On this occasion the council highway manager visited but, in his words, was not significant enough to 
warrant further action. It is in our opinion unreasonable to subject the residents to additional noise and 
disturbance both in additional numbers of visitors and as an all year license including its currently 
proposed hours. Further in some instances noise will become a nuisance and possibly an 
environmental issue for residents living at the lower end of Halstock Close and most definitely for 
residents living in Fisherbridge. 
 
Yours Sincerely 

 

 

20.  
 
Dear Sir/Madame, 
I am not sure I have the correct website or vehicle to make an objection to an outdoor stage and bar 
area at Weymouth bay campsite,Preston Road.  

Page 47



I would like to make a strong objection to this proposal. In the summer the park often open the doors 
to the entertainment room and the music is so loud we can hear it inside our house . Goodness knows 
what it would be like if the stage was outside. I have children who need to get to sleep and I have to 
get to work early in the morning.  
I am very tolerant of the holiday park as I know it brings in much needed revenue to the local area but 
this is a step to far as the park is in a residential area.  
Kind regards, 

 

21.  

 

Licensing Application: Haven Leisure Ltd. 

Description: Outdoor Stage and Container Bar Area, 

Weymouth Bay Holiday Park, Weymouth DT3 6BQ 

Dear Committee Members, 

On behalf of my husband and myself, I object to the above licensing application on 

the grounds of public nuisance for the following reasons: 

1. To prevent a public nuisance from such a venture, the activities witl need to be well 

managed. I have no confidence based on past and current experience that this will be 

the case, for example, the management showed a complete disregard for the residents 

of Halstock Close by creating a service road four years ago parallel to the Close 

thereby bringing noise disturbance from deliveries, rubbish disposal, staff, fans for 

refrigerated storage etc. closer to the boundary and to residents. The issues suffered 

and the interventions of the Environmental Health team are on record. 

2. I have no confidence that the management will be pro-active in keeping noise 

disturbance within their own boundaries. We have suffered from amplified children's 

and adult entertainment on the wooden terrace erected four years ago to the rear of the 

main complex. This noise can be heard not only in the garden but inside the house 

above the television. This issue is on record with the Environmental Health team. 

3. Noise levels in the evening are going to be especially noticeable because there is less 

background noise. This will negatively impact on children who are sleeping and 

residents' enjoyment of their properties and gardens. 

4. The keeping of records of complaints will not resolve issues. Record keeping to date 

has not been accurate as the response is always that it is the first time the issue has 

been raised whereas other neighbours have complained in the same season too. The 

application states that records of complaints from noise disturbance from local 

residents about the proposed venture are to be retained for 'at least twelve months': 

this means that the 'evidence' could disappear every 13 months thus allowing the 

management to argue that there is not an on-going issue. 

5. Similarly, the application states that 'records will be kept of staff training'. The 

response we have had from Haven management over the last four years when we have 

complained about noise disturbance is that it was an issue staff training. Records 

alone are meaningless, it is the impact of staff training that matters and the success of 

' 

this is a management issue. 

6. The implication in the application is that Haven management expect there to be some 

noise disturbance to residents as 'a contact telephone number ... will be provided to 

nearbylocalresidents'd)10&d)l1... if acomplaintofnoiseweretobereceived 

during the operating hours ... action shall be taken promptly to reduce (not eliminate) 

Page 48



noise nuisance to local residents.' 

The entertainment activities will go on until 9pm and possibly 11pm at night. As 

people disperse to their caravans they will create a noise disturbance. Holiday makers 

returning to Sea View will walk along the public path between the caravan site and 

Halstock Close to get the return transport causing significant disruption to local 

residents. Holidaymakers and indeed, Haven staff are oblivious to the distance their 

voices carry. It is worth noting that the Location Plan (1) (P-FUL-2022-0431- 

3197.5.01B) is inaccurate and potentially misleading: the two houses at the bottom of 

Halstock Close which are bordered on two sides by the caravan site are for some 

reason, not shown. We live in the missing house closest to the main complex. 

The proposed venture will require the additional delivery and movement of kegs of 

beer especially in the evening. Kegs create a considerable amount of noise when 

moved. The management re-sited the pump room on the main complex four years 

ago. It is now opposite the side of our house. No noise reducing materials have been 

used on the road surface. The licensing application will bring increased noise 

disturbance to us and other residents. 

It is disappointing that Haven management have not publicised this plan more openly and 

widely. 

We live next to a caravan site and accept that people on holiday want to have a good time. 

Personally, I do not accept that alcohol and late evening amplified entertainment is necessary 

for the success of a family activity centre. Weymouth Bay Caravan Park covers a large area, 

why do they site so many of their activities so close to residential properties? It causes 

unnecessa.ry conflict. 

Yours faithfully, 

 

22.  

 

Dear Sirs, 

 

I am writing to object to the granting of the above. 

I am the owner of  and have resided here for the past 22 years. My property abuts 

the campsite. I therefore have the benefit of first hand, on site experience of the day to day activities 

of these premises. 

The main thrust of my objection emanates from the undoubted increase in noise pollution that will 

arise, together with an upsurge in public nuisance levels. 

Musical events such as these will no doubt attract substantial audiences. The crowds will naturally 

bring an attendant measure of revelry to add to the proceedings. Throw in whatever alcohol is 

consumed and a potent mix ensues. On still summer nights the cacophony of sound produced will 

carry all too easily across a considerable distance. Both close residents and others in the vicinity will 

be unable to avoid whatever noise arises. This has already happened before on several occasions, 

and from the same source, i.e. Weymouth Bay campsite. For the residents quiet, relaxed outdoor 

activities may have to be curtailed. A retreat indoors may be the only means of partial evasion. It will 

still be heard, even indoors. It is therefore inescapable. 

This is unreasonable. 

Home owners/residents must not be subjected to this during the evening/nighttime. I do not want a 

concert venue this close so that it is, in effect, in my back garden! 

 

Page 49



Yours faithfully 

 

 

23. 

 

 Dear Sir, 

I object to the granting of a licence for outdoor entertainment at the holiday park. Because: 

1.There is already indoor music and entertainment, including provision of alcohol on the site. 

2.Even if noise limiters are used, there will still be significant noise pollution in the area. 

3.From the plans, it looks as if the stage will be facing SW. The prevailing wind direction is SW, 

as a consequence of which, the noise will be blown towards the residential area. 

4.As for the length of time proposed I am quite sure that I am not alone in thinking that 

from three weeks before Easter until the end if the season is a very long time for residents to be 

inundated with noise. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

 

24.  

 

I wish to strongly object to the current application for Weymouth Bay campsite for licensing and 

outdoor stage for the following reasons, 

 

1) noise. The majority of Preston and Sutton Poyntz will be badly affected.  

 

2) Weymouth Bay campsite main source of revenue is caravan hire and they appear to be fully 

booked. This new venture is to raise profits from sales of drink etc. This will deprive Weymouth's town 

centre businesses who's only source of revenue are drink sales, They have also been struggling of 

late.  

 

3) Lastly if people are drinking on site at Haven they will not be using the local bus services.  

 

Kind regards 

Page 50



 

 

 

25.  

 

I notice with concern that the above holiday park ( Haven, part of Bourne Leisure) has applied for a 

license to hold outdoor events on a stage plus sell alcohol from an outdoor container bar. 

This proposal concerns me greatly, due to the fact it is outside and also the times and dates it is 

proposed to be operating - from 3 weeks before Good Friday until the last day of October - which is 

almost 8 months of the year when Easter is early and over 7 months when Easter is later - 7 days a 

week. The times of operation vary - but each day for at least 10 hours, rising to 12 hours 3 times a 

week for the film shows ( which will include sporting events) and every day for the alcohol sales.This 

will be intolerable due to the noise generated. 

Weymouth Bay holiday park is next to many residential roads - mostly housing plus a church. The 

noise from these outdoor events ( including amplified music and films, sports) will be heard beyond 

the perimeter of the holiday park and will impact negatively upon the local permanent  residents. 

 

 

 

26.  

 

Dear Sir/Madam 

I write to strongly object to the proposals concerning the application for a premises licence for an 

outdoor stage and container bar area and the use of live and recorded music.  

As a homeowner and father of a young boy in Fisherbridge Road, the impact personally and 

financially is likely to be considerable.  

Fisherbridge is a family orientated street with lots of the children in those families primary school age 

and younger.  

The lateness of the proposed entertainment is obviously a concern for all of us who have children 

who's sleep pattern will be severely disrupted.  

The nature of the application, giving Haven the option to have a blanket licence, and therefore, the 

freedom to potentially cause noise pollution at anytime between the hours of 11am and 9pm (and 

sometimes 11pm) , seems unreasonable. A more scaled down and fixed timetable of events seems a 

more viable option.  

Also the value of our homes could be significantly affected if there is consistent and obtrusive noise.  

Page 51



We are aware that environmental health have given some recommendations that we feel should be 

considered, but still feel that these are more than we would want to accept.  

We hope you take the opinions of the local residents of Preston into consideration when making a 

decision regarding this licence.  

Kind regards 

 

27.  

 

To whom it may concern. 

 

With regards to above licensing application, it is in my opinion and with much apprehension and 

concern as a close local resident to the Weymouth Bay/Haven resort that granting permission for a 

outdoor stage with live music and a bar on a permanent  basis would be hugely inconsiderate to a 

large proportion of residents within the vicinity of this holiday complex giving how loud this function 

and a com-pere on stage and its regularity this application would allow, I would wholly object to this 

being granted and see no reason why a license can not be applied for as and when this establishment 

requires one.  Please give this application careful thought, for the consideration of those having to 

endure this throughout  our summers. 

 

Kind regards 

 

 

 

28. 

 

 To whom it may concern this is to register our  objection to the above  Haven Park licensing 

application, we live on Fisherbridge Road and close to the proposed entertainment sites 

 
Even with the proposed noise reduction means incorporated we believe that based on previous 
events at the Holiday Park the noise levels will be at an  unacceptable level, the noise at previous 
events have been so loud that we have to keep our windows closed which was an unacceptable level 
of noise pollution. 
The previous noise consisted of not just music which can be limited to a degree but loud 
DJ/commentators and people shouting that much it sounded right outside our house. 
 
Any loud sounds on Fisherbridge are additionally enhanced as we seem to be in an acoustic bowel 
with the sounds echoing around us  

Page 52



 
Previously there has also been loud music from the local pubs every summer which will increase the 
general noise pollution even more 
 
To have that level of noise pollution on a daily basis is totally unacceptable and we consider that it will 
drastically reduce our standard of living  
 
Accordingly we total object to the proposal 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
 

29.  

 

We would like to raise concerns about the above application as we live right next door to Weymouth 

Bay Holiday Park. 

 

This is a built up housing area and the noise would affect many locals living in the vicinity. We have 

bought expensive houses and pay high council tax so we can live in a nice area. We already hear 

some noise from the Park when holiday makers/revellers are socialising outside their caravans or 

returning from the clubhouse after a few drinks! In the past, when there has been an outdoor event 

there or at the Spiceship pub, you can't sit outside or have the patio doors open because of the 

pounding music.  

 

They may be trying to copy/replicate the popular outside bar area at Waterside Holiday Park, 

Bowleaze. Waterside is next to the sea and not in a residential area.  

 

Keep the noise and the revellers inside the clubhouse where they belong. They don't need an outside 

stage area. Support the locals who have to live here rather than allow Haven to call all the shots and 

dominate around here. We are just getting over Covid, prices are escalating and we are all spending 

more and more time at home. Please let us relax and enjoy what we have worked hard for. 

 

 

 

 

30. 

 

 I would like to object to the proposed outdoor stage area, including live and recorded music, at 

Weymouth Bay campsite. This is a quiet residential area, with many older people, like me, who value 

their peace and quiet. As the crow flies, my home is just a hundred yards from the campsite. The 

noise pollution, if this were to go ahead, would be unbearable. 

Page 53



 

 

31.  
 
Hello, 
 
I wish to object to the application for a premises licence for an outdoor stage and container bar area 
at Weymouth Bay campsite. 
 
The main reason for my objection is the noise that live and recorded music will have on the roads 
around where I live. 
 
We are in Brookside Close which is very near to Weymouth Bay Holiday Park. Already when they 
have outdoor dos the noise is overwhelming and on occasions we have had to close our windows to 
block it out. In the hot weather this is far from ideal. You cannot sit outside without hearing every 
piece of music and talk that the compere says. 
 
There are a lot of families with young children around here and if loud music is going on into the 
evening then this will clearly disturb young children's sleep. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 

32. 

 

Dear Sir / Madam 

 

We wish to lodge an objection to the above application for the following reasons: 

 

The entrance to Halstock Close and the Public Footpath entrance we continue to experience 

holidaymakers being dropped off and picked up during the day and late 

into the evening and this we feel will increase to an unacceptable level of noise and 

nuisance if this licence is granted in its currently proposed form. Not only this but we have had 

multiple 

occurrences of litter being dropped / dumped on the road / pavement towards the footpath entrance 

from visitors of the campsite including beer bottles cans etc, this will only increase if the application 

goes ahead. 

 

Page 54



Visitors from the sister camp Seaview will undoubtedly use this footpath to access the camp and new 

stage 

including the drinking area both early in the evening and late at night after the venue 

has closed. In addition the movement of Alcohol, beer bottles etc  purchased from the Spar shop on 

route to campsite at night will cause noise nuisance and disturbance to residents further into the 

Close. 

 

Parking is already at best an issue since both Haven staff and camp visitors use 

Halstock Close as a parking area and this will increase with people traveling down from 

the sister camp such that, as we have experienced in the past, dangerous and double 

parking will occur. 

 

It is in our opinion unreasonable to subject the residents to additional noise and disturbance both in 

additional numbers of visitors and as an all 

year licence and its currently proposed hours.  

 

 

 

Regards 

 

 

 

33. 
 
 Good afternoon  
I have been made aware that the above business have applied for a premises licence for an outdoor 
stage and container bar area for live and recorded music. I would like to object this proposal based on 
the intrusion it will have on me. I live at Willow Crescent on the edge of the site. I accept loud noise 
levels during the day and, that, on the 'occasional' evenings, maybe two or three a year, they have 
'parties' until about 11pm. However, this is acceptable because it is only occasionally. It would be a 
huge invasion of the peace in this area of Weymouth would it be allowed to happen frequently.  
 
I hope this will be taken into account when making a decision. Please be respectful and mindful of the 
older residents living in the Preston area.  
 
Yours sincerely 

 

Page 55



 

34.  
 
I am writing to object to the licence request made by Haven Holiday Park. I live at  
directly opposite.  We already have to deal with a lot of noise and disturbance from the park and this 
is only going to add to it.  I don’t wish to be in my garden having to listen to live music from the camp 
all day and all night 7 days a week.   

 

 

35. 

We formally object to this application on the following grounds:  

 

We live in Rymbury, Preston which is up the hill off Seven Acres Road and close to Weymouth Bay 

Holiday Park. On previous occasions we have heard music and their PA systems clearly  at our 

house. This is usually very loud and intrusive.  If this application is granted and music/entertainment is 

happening on a regular basis and for long periods we feel it would be unbearable.   

 

We hope this application is refused as it would not only affect the well-being of us but also that of 

many other people living in the vicinity of Weymouth Bay Holiday Park. 

 

Regards 

 

 

 

36.  
 
Hello Licensing at Dorset Council 
 
I am writing to raise my objection to the proposed plan for a premises licence at Weymouth Bay 
campsite for an outdoor stage and container bar area with live and recoded music. 
 
As a local resident, this proposal will have an impact on the quality of life with noise pollution everyday 
of the week.  It is unfair on the people who live nearby to the Weymouth Bay campsite to have to 
endure live and recorded music playing outside - they will use speakers and the noise will travel long 
distances if it is not enclosed by walls.  The partying will go on Monday to Sunday, most likely from 
midway until well after midnight.  It is totally uncalled noise pollution.  

Page 56



ADDITIONAL EMAIL SENT ON THURSDAY 23RD JUNE 22 

Hello again Licensing at Dorset Council   
 
I understand that that the first round of Haven outdoor licence application went to Weymouth town 
councils advisory committee.  And that it now goes to to Dorset council for a a final decision. 
 
My objection remains to the to the proposed plan for a premises licence at Weymouth Bay campsite 
for an outdoor stage and bar area with events, including live and recorded music.  There will be the 
excessive noise from speakers being used to project the volume of stage events, including music.  
And added into this will be the sale of alcohol which has the potential to make some campsite guests 
very unruly and argumentative.  It is not a good mix; and not the image for promoting Weymouth as a 
family holiday destination. 

 

 

37. 

 

 Dear Sir, 

 

I would like to lodge an objection to the above planning application for an outdoor bar and stage area 

within the Weymouth Bay Holiday Park. 

 

I have already this year had to contact the Park due to excessive noise, and believe that the 

construction of this additional entertainment space will only exacerbate this problem. 

The people staying at the park often make a lot of noise that wakes us when they walk through, and 

this additional location will only increase this problem.  The location of the proposed site is also 

obviously meant to be utilised by not only residents of Weymouth Bay Park, but also the adjacent Sea 

View park, increasing the numbers of people and therefore noise.   

 

The use of microphones and speakers during performances at this site will have loud music 

resonating across the area, disturbing local residents. 

 

Therefore we believe the granting of this licence will subject the residents of the neighbouring roads to 

unacceptable levels of noise and disruption.   

 

I hope that the planning committee takes the views of the local residents before approving any 

application. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Page 57



 

 

38.  

 

 

 

Page 58



 

39. 

 

 We object to the above application.  

The reasons being we live in Seven Acres Road and in the past when playing live music and 

speaking via a microphone at this site we can hear every word!  

This is unacceptable  to expect local people to put up with this type of noise every day through the 

summer.  

I am working as a registered nurse and need my sleep to perform  my job safely. My husband also 

objects. We live in a quiet residential area and this should not be approved. 

 

 

 

40.  

 

Dear Weymouth Town Council and Dorset Council 

 

We understand that the Weymouth Bay Camp Site are seeking a licence for an outdoor stage and 

container bar area on their site, including the use of live and recorded music.   

 

We are neighbours of the camp site [our rear garden is adjacent to part of the site].  Normally we have 

very little disturbance from the camp site.  However we are very concerned that an outdoor stage with 

live or recorded music will change this scenario.  The area is quite open, and outdoor music etc will 

be carried a much further distance than anything that happens now.   

 

We have been owners of a caravan on this site in recent years, and the reason for choosing it was 

because it is a quiet site.  When we moved to an adjacent bungalow, we knew that it would be a quiet 

area with the camp site as our neighbour.   

 

We therefore ask the respective Councils to reject this application to the Haven Weymouth Bay Camp 

Site.  All the residents in this and other adjacent roads will be adversely affected if this license is 

granted.  This will affect the value of our properties, which is also undesirable.   

 

Yours faithfully 

 

Page 59



 

41. 

 

 Dear Councillor O'Leary, thank you for the invitation to attend the meeting on Tuesday 14th re the 

Haven application.  Unfortunately, I shan't be able to attend but thought I would e mail my 'two 

pennyworth'! 

 

I did attend a presentation at the Weymouth Bay site on 25th May at their invitation. Sadly, there were 

only 2 of us from Fisherbridge Road there. 

The 2 of us asked the obvious questions about noise and length thereof. We received assurances 

that noise would be kept at a minimum. 

 

I don't object per se to the plans but on reflection I am concerned at the 12 hours a day they are 

requesting. I can't speak for the other residents but my garden is my sanctuary and can't imagine that 

the noise will be minimal. 

It's enough to deal with the usual holiday sounds of the camp which has become steadily worse over 

the 25 years I have lived here. 

 

Thank you for your concern. 

Regards 

 

42.  

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

We are writing to express our objection to the granting of a premises licence for an outdoor stage and 

container bar at the Weymouth Bay Holiday Park, on the grounds that it will cause a public nuisance. 

 

As residents of Fisherbridge Road which, is only about 100m away from the site it seems highly likely 

that the sound from the stage and bar area will travel to our house regardless of any sound barrier.  It 

is also not just the sound of the music and films that needs to be considered, but also the sound of 

potentially hundreds of people. 

 

The situation will be exacerbated by the fact that when the holiday park will be busiest during the 

summer months, we sleep with our windows open.  Although 9pm may not seem late our young 

children will be trying to get to sleep before this. 

Page 60



 

I hope you take our objection in to consideration. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

 

43.  

 

To Whom It May Concern. 

 

I wish to express my views regarding the application for an outdoor stage at Weymouth Bay Holiday 

Park for the forthcoming meeting on Tuesday 14th June. 

Being directly behind the fence surrounding the park we will be in quite close proximity to the 

proposed stage and bar.  

We have lived here for over 16 years and over this time the park has had occasional outdoor events 

which we have been quite loud at times but as there have only been a few throughout the year we 

have not been too concerned, however, we certainly are concerned about the fact that this license is 

to have a stage for live or recorded music and a bar seven days a week throughout the year. 

As the music will be quite loud, this will carry and will be heard by many of the nearby residents who 

may be trying to enjoy a peaceful day/evening in their gardens, or perhaps just sitting in their homes 

with the doors/windows open so I think 7 nights a week is a bit much. Not to mention the outside bar 

that will be open until 11pm therefore people will be out in the park drinking and behaving in a loud 

manor till the late hours.  

I do not feel this is necessary as there is a perfectly good club house at the park which has always 

been used for such things.  

 

Regards 

 

 

 

Page 61



 

 

44. 

 

 I am emailing to state my objection to this premises licence being granted, for the proposed outdoor 

stage which contains a bar area with live and recorded music. 

 

My property backs onto the caravan site, I knew the site was there when we moved in and expected 

some noise.  In the summer we do sometimes hear the music and entertainment from the current club 

complex. 

 

We are not happy that potentially we will have noise all year round if the application is granted.  The 

additional planning application currently awaiting decision states that the bar would be open all year 

round which could in turn lead to the whole site being open all year which is not acceptable. 

 

The reasons for objecting to this application are 

 

Playing of films, live and recorded music seven days a week until 9pm is not acceptable, and will 

cause a noise nuisance to properties adjacent to the park. 

 

The live entertainment from existing club can at times be heard at high levels during the summer 

months. 

 

The site can be waterlogged at the beginning and end of the season. 

 

Additional light pollution from the stage / container bar areas. 

 

 

 

45.  

 

As residents living in Seven Acres Road, Preston, we wish to object to the granting of a licence for the 

above . 

Page 62



 

We have already suffered in the past from noise omitted from The Spice Ship when they have had 

their music venues  and  do not wish to have anymore unnecessary noise inflicted on this lovely 

residential area. 

 

The majority of the people that live in the surrounding area are pensioners and people who want a 

quiet life. 

 

We live in quite a windy area and noise travels over a wide area and when there was live music at 

The Spice Ship we could hear it very clearly. You could even hear the words of the songs and we are 

quite a distance away. 

 

There are already enough amusement facilities at the holiday camp in their indoor venues and we do 

not see why we should be subjected to additional noise from Weymouth Bay holiday camp. 

 

We therefore object to the granting of a licence. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

46.  

 

Hi, 

 

Please accept this email as a formal objection to the proposed application from HAVEN holiday park 

in Preston for a premises license for an outdoor stage and bar area including live and recorded music. 

We believe this would introduce an unacceptable and unsociable level of noise to neighbouring 

residential properties including ours. 

We have already experienced occasional live music from the Spice Ship in recent years which can be 

heard clearly across most of the Preston area from Sutton Road up to Chalbury corner. Preston also 

already suffers from a large increase in traffic noise during the summer months, including from many 

loud motorbikes and scooters. 

Page 63



 

Regards, 

 

 

 

47.  
 
I am a resident of Fisherbridge Road and its branches, that is to say of the slopes that face Haven 
campsite across the Jordan stream. 
 
Some years ago I found it necessary to visit Haven site to complain about the very loud music and 
announcements by loudspeaker.  On that occasion the sounds were limited to a few hours only on 
one or two days.  
  Since then we have mostly enjoyed quiet; but I am concerned that the proposed licence could make 
this kind of disturbance more common or continuous. 
 
I would strongly suggest that the Council should make its own investigations of the likely volume and 
duration of sound and its likely effect on residential areas before making a decision on this 
application. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
-- 

 

 

48.  

 

Please No 

 

It may be music to some but to others it is noise pollution. 

 

Even in the application they are admitting they are going to cause a nuisance. 

 

Why should Preston suffer just so Haven can extract a bit more money out of holiday makers. 

 

Page 64



 

 

49.  

 

As a local resident, My wife and I strongly object to the  

Haven Holiday Park Playing  outdoor music from 11am. To 9pm. Daily throughout the summer. 

From our garden we would be able to hear the ‘music’ clearly and it would spoil our summer. (and our 

neighbours) 

Regards, 

 

 

50. 

 

 Dear Weymouth Council/ Councillor Louie O’Leary 

 

I would like to respond to the recent leaflet posted through my door in Preston, regarding an 

application by Weymouth Bay Holiday Park for Live and recorded music outdoors. 

 

I would like to say that I strongly OBJECT to the application for Live or Recorded Music outside at 

Weymouth Bay.  I live just over the fence from the campsite in Fisherbridge Close therefore this would 

impact immensely on the peace and quiet I have been enjoying over the last 16 years since living 

here.   I am not adverse to the park per se, but did a lot of research before buying this property and 

was assured the Park would not impact on my lifestyle of enjoying my garden in the evenings. 

 

Some years ago they held a ‘One off’ ‘It’s a Knockout” evening and the noise was horrendous even 

inside the house.  I did not complain as understood this was a ‘One off’.   However this is a totally 

different scenario.    

 

Apart from the disturbance, this would have a detrimental effect on the value of our properties in this 

area, as word soon gets around in Weymouth. 

 

Locals,a large part elderly, like myself in this area paid a premium to live in a quieter part of the town. 

Page 65



 

Please see sense and reject this ridiculous application. 

 

Kind regards 

 

 

 

51.  
 
We wish to comment against the Application for a Premises Licence at Weymouth Bay Holiday Park 
by Haven Leisure Ltd. 
Our objection is primarily on the basis of noise nuisance from the activites to which the licence 
applies.  

Preston is a pleasant and quiet area. However, the lie of the land makes a significant part of the 
village, even a considerable distance away, very susceptible to noise from the south side of Preston 
Road.  

Until shortly before the Covid pandemic, the Spice Ship Inn put on occasional events in their garden 
area which were horrendously loud where we live at the top of Seven Acres Road. It was impossible 
to enjoy being in our garden or even listen to entertainment of our own choosing indoors with the 
windows closed. When it went on late into the evening it was hard to sleep. On occasions this was so 
bad that we had to go away for the day to escape from it. 

If this development goes ahead, the noise is likely to be as bad or even worse and will also be 
problematic for shift workers. In our view it is entirely unsuitable for Preston. There is already plenty 
of entertainment in the area for visitors throughout the holiday season. As a matter of principle, 
developments should not be allowed to destroy the environment for those who live in the area. As 
council tax payers, we believe the council should be protecting our environment. 

It is also probable that many of those who stay in the holiday park would not wish to be assaulted by 
loud noise. 

We also wish to point out that it seems wholly unreasonable that formal notification of the licence 
application was not sited in places where many of those most likely to be adversely affected by the 
development would see it. For example, we only became aware of the applications from an informal 
notice which appeared recently next to the bus stop at the top of Seven Acres Road. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Page 66



 
 

 

52.  

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

This email is to object to the application for a premises licence for an outdoor stage and container bar 

area at Weymouth Bay campsite which would include live and recorded music. 

 

I live at Fisherbridge Rd, Preston, and our garden backs onto the main Weymouth Bay holiday park, 

and any sort of music either live or recorded would cause an intolerable level of noise. 

'The Camp' 4 or 5 weeks ago had an outdoor event with recorded music which caused myself, 

family and guests to retreat indoors with windows and doors shut as the level of noise was still quite 

insufferable. If the wind is in the right direction we can even hear the rides at Bowleaze Cove which 

even from a distance can be quite invasive. 

 

My elderly father who at 81 just wants a bit of peace and a modicum of quiet, would find the level of 

noise we witnessed/heard the other week to be most insufferable should he be trying to sleep. 

 

We ask that any such application for a licence of this type be looked at in depth so as no levels of 

noise would infringe upon our quality of  peace and quiet as we sit in our garden on a sunny day or 

balmy night. 

 

Kind regards, 

 

 

 

Page 67



 

53.  
 
Dear Sir 
I have heard about the Haven Leisure licensing application and seen the details online. 
However I have not been able to find it displayed publicly, I wonder if this is to keep it as secret as 
possible and therefore avoid adverse comments. 
I object to this as it will cause noise pollution, I live on a hill and am 
in the line of fire from music from the Springhead Hotel. Spice Ship and Bridge Inn areas as well as 
Bowleaze Cove, Haven's proposed application will also cause a disturbance to me. 
The oher premises I have mentioned have music only occasionally but the prospect of music 
shattering my peace for 12 hours a day 7 days a week fills me with dread. There are so many 
caravans in this area they are an eyesore and blot on the landscape but to be subjected to prolonged 
noise from them for potentially all year and the whole of the summer when the windows of my house 
will be open is an invasion of my privacy and something I should not have to endure, I therefore object 
in the strongest possible terms and ask that the applicationbe denied. 
Thank you 
Yours faithfully 

 

 

54.  

 

I am the ward Councillor for this location and I object to the application. 

 

The park is adjacent to private housing.  The application is for an open air license to 23.00 for over 

200 nights a year with a mixture of types of event approximately 100m from residential 

properties.  Approaching half of these are for cinema showings.  The impact on local residents will be 

extraordinarily intrusive and disruptive to all of the local community. 

 

The application should be rejected. 

 

Regards 

 

Cllr Tony Ferrari 

 

 

55.  

 

To Whom it may concern,  

 

We would like to register our objection to the recent proposals from Haven for an outdoor music 

venue at their Weymouth Bay site. 

 

Page 68



We live in Fisherbridge Road, which boarders some of the site. 

 

We have already notice noise levels increasing over the last year, with guests becoming increasingly 

loud and rowdy. 

 

We have 2 young children and feel that this new request will not only exasserbate the current issue, 

raising the general noise level coming from the site, with music etc, but also increase the level of 

noise we hear from the guests, disrupting our day to day life. 

 

Whilst we are happy that the site provides income for the town, and we bought our home in the 

knowledge their would be some noise from the site being so close, we strongly object to their new 

proposal for the reasons above. 

 

Kind Regards,  

 

 

 

56.  

 

Dear Sir or Madam 

 

OUTDOOR STAGE AND CONTAINER BAR AREA - WEYMOUTH BAY HOLIDAY PARK 

 

I wish to object to the premises licence application for the above named premises on the grounds of 

prevention of public nuisance for the following reasons: 

 

1.  I note that the application asks for all entertainment to cease at 9pm but for the sale of 
alcohol to continue until 11pm.  However, if the sale of alcohol until 11pm in this area is 
granted the exceptions/exemptions under the Act (if I have read them correctly) would entitle 
Haven to continue the live entertainment elements to an audience of less than 500 up until 
11pm.  If they are genuine in their intention to stop the entertainment at 9pm then I would 
strongly suggest that the sale of alcohol from the outside bar also ceases at 9pm so that this 
loophole would be closed.  This would not prevent anyone from enjoying a drink in the outside 
area after 9pm as they could legally buy it from the inside bar and consume it in the outside 
area. 

2. I note that the application for the sale of alcohol is not proposed to be restricted to the same 
times of year as the entertainment.  Taking into account the loophole mentioned above this 
would enable Haven to operate with the entertainment all year round. 

3. I assume that condition 13.  has been cut and pasted from another licence application as it 
refers to Haven liaising with Weymouth and Portland Borough Council about setting noise 
limits.  As Weymouth and Portland Borough Council no longer exists this effectively renders 
the condition unenforceable. 

Page 69



4. The application refers to liaising with "nearby" local residents but there is no clarification of 
what the applicant deems to be "nearby".  I flag this up as I live at Fisherbridge Road which is 
2 roads away from the site.  I doubt that they would determine this as being "nearby" but, 
speaking from previous experience, it is certainly close enough to hear noise from the site 
when the wind is in the wrong direction. 

In summary, this application if granted in its current form would entitle Haven to play live and/or 

recorded music for 12 hours per day, 7 days a week, 52 weeks a year (taking into account the 

exceptions/exemptions referrred to earlier).  My personal view is that for a venue in the centre of a 

residential area this is excessive.  I am sure that the applicant's representatives will skilfully argue that 

it is not Haven's intention to use the licence in this way but the fact of the matter is that, if it is granted 

in its current form, there is nothing to stop them! 

 

This application needs to be carefully weighed against the residents' basic human right to have 

peaceful enjoyment of their possessions i.e. their homes and gardens.   

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

 

57.  

 

Good morning,  

 

I would like to submit my objection to the proposed planning of the outdoor area at the Haven 

Caravan Site in Preston. I'm a neighbouring resident to this site, with two young school aged 

daughters and work from home.   

 

Primarily, I would like to point out that there has been a lack of consultation with local residents 

throughout this process. As an example, I only became aware of this myself yesterday 15 June 2022 

through the magic of social media. This information should have been shared with the local residents 

formally by post. It seems there is an unwillingness to consult and engage with residents in notifying 

them of a  plan that will significantly increase the already terrible noise residents have to put up with, 

along with drunkenness from April until October every year.  

 

Page 70



The location of the holiday park is in a residential area which makes this sort of plan not 

appropriate for outdoor live music and alcohol sales until 11:00pm. The anti-social behaviour we 

experience from the Have caravan site already is enough to handle. Alcohol, drunkenness, drug use, 

public urination, public defecation, vomiting, intimidation of residents, particularly the elderly, high 

unsatisfactory experiences for younger children.  

 

This application has a very undesirable effect on residents and will make many in the community lives 

unbearable. The request is unreasonable seven days a week and 12 hours a day until 11pm.  

 

I would like to object to the application made by Haven Caravan Site in Preston Rd, Weymouth.   

 

Regards 

 

 

58. 

 

 To who it may concern, 

 

We live in a multi-generational household opposite the Weymouth Bay Haven site and have done so 

for 41 years. 

 

I am writing to object to the licence application from Haven Leisure Limited for an outdoor stage and 

container bar which will provide live and recorded music, PA system, activities including film nights 

and children's entertainment and an outside bar which they have applied to run between 11am - 

11pm. 

 

We have noticed an increase in music and anti-social noise and behaviour particularly when the bar 

and club house close for the evening, which happens on most nights during the summer, especially at 

weekends and particularly in hot weather when the club house doors are left open. If the wind 

direction is right we can hear the music so clearly we are unable to keep our windows open. We are 

very concerned about the proposed open air bar and attached entertainment. 

 

Recently, during the Jubilee weekend, the manager did write and inform us that they were holding an 

all day 'owners event' which went on late into the evening - the noise was inescapable and 

unwelcome - but was described as a 'one off' to celebrate a historic event so we tolerated the noise. 

 

We consider the effect that the noise from the outside entertainment from 11am - 11pm for 365 days 

of the year (particularly in combination with the existing clubhouse and bar) would be a significant 

public nuisance, being intrusive and unacceptable and impacting of the quality of our life and that of 

our near neighbours, as well as potentially increasing the incidence of antisocial behaviour. 

Page 71



 

I have copied this email to Cllr Kate Wheller, who I understand is on the licencing committee at Dorset 

Council. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

 

 

59.  

 

Dear sir or madam  

We wish to register our strong objections to the Haven Parks request for an outdoor licence allowing 

them to play music and sell alcohol outdoors. 

We live not far from the sites and feel granting this licence would disturbed the peace of the area. 

Regards,

 

 

60.  

 

 We strongly object to a premises licence, being granted to Weymouth Bay Holiday Park. 

 

The proposed stage and container bar, will be situated just 100 metres from our property, the noise 

created will be unbearable, as we know from past outdoor events that have taken place at this park. 

 

The outdoor bar being near a public right of way will attract non residents of the park, creating anti 

social behaviour. 

 

It is a family holiday resort, and it is not right that children, will be playing amongst the open sale of 

alcohol, and over intoxicated guests. 

 

This site is too close to residential properties, and if allowed to go ahead would lower our standard of 

living dramatically, 

 

Page 72



 

 

61.  
 
Hello, 
I am writing to express my strong objection to the application by the Haven Holiday Park in Weymouth 
for an Outdoor License. As a local resident I believe if the license were to be granted the unavoidable 
noise would have a detrimental and unacceptable impact on my family’s and my wellbeing and quality 
of life. We would be unable to escape the noise and would have no choice whether we listened to it or 
not. Therefore I am asking you to refuse the application.  
Kind regards, 

 

 

62.  
 
Sir/Madam 
 
I wish to object to the Haven Outdoor License Application - I feel it is totally unnecessary and will have 
a negative impact on the neighbourhood properties 

 

 

63.  

17th June 2022 
 
Dear Sir, 
Subject. Haven outdoor and container, Weymouth  
Objection to the subject Licensing application on the grounds of Noise, disturbance, nuisance, loss of 
amenity and - using UK Government data - harm to health. 
 
Haven Holiday Park’s application is for live outdoor music and cinema from 11:00 to 21:00 (10 hours) 
every day, from three weeks before Good Friday until the last day of October.  
The date of Good Friday is variable, the earliest being March 20th, Which is 225 days before the last 
day of October.  
Three weeks (21 days) before the earliest date of Good Friday is 28th February, making a total of 246 
consecutive days 
 
1. Noise, disturbance, nuisance and loss of amenity. 
Past experience 
I live on a hill, just 400 metres north of the centre of Haven Holiday Park.  
I am on the west side of the valley through which the River Jordan flows from Sutton Poyntz. 

Page 73

https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/35024/282813/Haven+-+Website+Version.pdf/84f4b7b1-eb50-8b6a-cfde-496fa4698a73?t=1653661427486


365 metres to the South East is the Spice Ship pub, where, pre- lockdown, an annual music event 
was held. The noise level was such that sitting in our garden was unpleasant and, when indoors, we 
had to close our windows.  
The noise level was exacerbated by the distortion caused by the funnelling of the noise through the 
Valley, and the echoing from the sides of the valley – no doubt also influenced further by separate 
echoes from the buildings on the sides of the valley. (That is not conjecture. When my son was at 
school he learned the Euphonium and Trombone. From our garden he would play single notes to 
generate multiple echoes across the valley). 
We are similarly affected by noise when the Springhead pub (700 metres from my home) in Sutton 
Poyntz hosts music events. 
Likewise, music from the Bridge Inn, though that is much closer to our home. 
Although the above cause some Noise, disturbance, nuisance and loss of amenity, they are very 
infrequent so can be tolerated.  
 
Noise measurement 
The subject Licensing application (page 13, para 13) proposes measures to ensure that no noise 
nuisance is caused to residents, Those measures include identified monitoring points. 
The geography of the surrounding area - and the carriage of noise on the related variable air flows – 
would require a large number of monitoring points within Haven Holiday Park, and out to a radius of at 
least 400 metres. However, Haven Holiday Park’s proposal to include noise monitoring points 
confirms that the pledge to ensure no noise nuisance to the local communitycannot be 
honoured.  
(e.g., Friends who live in Fisherbridge Close (250 metres from Haven Holiday Park) tell me that they 
already suffer noise pollution from the Holiday Park’s existing indoor bar, so they will also be objecting 
to the current planning proposal) 
 
2. Harmful effects 
From: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/noise-and-vibration-management-environmental-
permits/noise-and-vibration-management-environmental-permits (January 2022) 
“Noise is recognised by the World Health Organization (WHO) (‘WHO Environmental Noise 
Guidelines for the European Region 2018’) as the second most harmful environmental stressor in 
Europe behind air pollution. 
The harmful effects come from the stress reactions it causes in the human body (which continue 

during sleep). These reactions can lead to: 

• increased heart rate  

• high blood pressure  

• cardiovascular disease  

• premature deaths  

• cognitive impairment  

• sleep disturbance  

• hypertension  

• annoyance  

The latest WHO figures estimate 16,000 premature deaths and 1.6 million healthy life years are lost 

across western Europe each year because of environmental noise pollution.” 

Summary,  
I object to Haven Holiday Park’s application for live outdoor music and cinema. 
For the reasons stated within this letter it will be detrimental to me in terms of health and loss 
of amenity, and to most of the local community living within (and probably beyond) a similar 
radius. 
 
Regards 

 

 

Page 74

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/noise-and-vibration-management-environmental-permits/noise-and-vibration-management-environmental-permits
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/noise-and-vibration-management-environmental-permits/noise-and-vibration-management-environmental-permits
https://www.euro.who.int/en/health-topics/environment-and-health/noise/publications/2018/environmental-noise-guidelines-for-the-european-region-2018
https://www.euro.who.int/en/health-topics/environment-and-health/noise/publications/2018/environmental-noise-guidelines-for-the-european-region-2018


 

64.  

 

Dear Licensing Team 

 

The above application was considered by the Planning and Licensing Committee at its meeting on 

Tuesday 14th June. Please find below a representation from Weymouth Town Council: 

 

“The Council objects to the application on the grounds of public nuisance from the sound levels. The 

Committee would be interested in Dorset Council negotiating with Haven to have a severely restricted 

programme of events, with all events concluding at 9pm.” 

 

I would be grateful if you could confirm receipt of this email.  

 

Kind Regards  

 

Niki Ayles 

Democratic Officer 

Email:

Direct Line: 

Main Office:

 

 

65.  

 

I would like you to register my objection to the above applying for a music license at their open air 

stage. 

I understand they want to  have music from 11am until 9pm throughout the year. 

I love music but I only want to hear  what I like and when I choose to listen , that is my right, I don’t 

want to be sat in my garden listening to other people’s music. 

I have 2 guitars and would never play them outside because I have respect for my neighbours. 

Often people like me are called NIMBY’s but would the people who are making the decision about this 

license , want this sort of intrusion on their lives if it affected them and their family. 

 

Regards

 

 

Page 75



 

66.  
 
My husband and I would like to protest in the strongest possible terms to Haven’s outdoor licence 
application for  music and events in East Preston, Weymouth. 
 
As East Preston residents for almost 40 years we have experienced Haven’s start to every season 
with music and commentary at tremendously loud levels until they are ordered to stop. It is most 
unpleasant for local ratepayers and not something we would be at all happy with on a permanent 
basis. As yearlong residents and contributors to the local economy we feel that our concerns should 
be seriously considered by our local Council. 
 
Yours 

 

67.  

 

From: 

 

I wish to object to the licensing application for the Outdoor Stage and Bar Area for this site. I, and 

many others, live in close proximity to the proposed location. I therefore think it is totally inappropriate 

to allow outdoor music and other entertainment, as well as drinking, on a site which is so close to 

local residences. This application is not just for a one-off occasion, which would possibly be tolerated, 

but for an extended period, every day and night from three weeks before Good Friday until the end of 

October. I wish to object on the grounds of prevention of crime and disorder, prevention of public 

nuisance, and protection of children from harm (being kept awake for long periods by the noise). I 

implore you to refuse the application.  

 

 

 

68. 

 

 I have lived at Preston for over 30 years and the rear of my property backs out onto 

properties on Preston Road which are directly opposite the Haven Caravan park.  

 

In the summertime in the evening i can often hear loud music coming from the Park and over the 

years i have raised this with my local councillor but to no avail. 

 

I therefore would not like to see this proposed outdoor licence application approved which would 

inevitably lead to increased levels of noise. 

 

Page 76



I strongly object to this application. 

Regards 

 

 

69.  

 

Hello, 

My name is

 Introduction 

I am objecting to the application by Haven leisure for an outdoor entertainment licence for Weymouth 

Bay Caravan Park. 

The reason is on the grounds of Public nuisance and annoyance to me and many residents who live 

in the vicinity of the Caravan Park.  The entertainments would generate noise from the proposed 

stage which lies to the north of the Caravan Park site, close to the Preston residential community. 

  

Objection grounds  

My objection to the granting of the External Entertainment Licence is on the grounds of excessive 

noise from the following entertainments: 

Ø  Outdoor plays 
Ø  Outdoor Live music  
Ø  Outdoor recorded music  
Ø  Outdoor dancing with music 

These activities can take place 7 days a week from 11.00hrs till 21.00hrs.  

Ø  Outdoor Cinema can take place for even longer, 7days a week from 11.00 till 23.00hrs.   
All of these activities will use microphones and loudspeakers.  Whatever the decibel level of these 

activities the noise will travel to the Preston residential community.   

It is important to note that geographically the Preston residential community lies to the north of the 

Caravan Park in the form of a natural amphitheatre. This unwanted noise will permeate into their 

outdoor areas and gardens taking away the rights of the residents to enjoy their natural environment. 

In addition these activities are requested to start in the 3 weeks before Good Friday and last until the 

last day of October. This period is 7 months of possible 7 day outdoor noisy activities, intolerable. 

  

At the Weymouth Licencing committee meeting that I attended on June 14 the general manager of the 

Caravan Park stated that the Licencing application was a Haven Leisure central strategy.  It had to be 

implemented by each holiday park in the country. 

Irrespective of the strategy, surely each location must be examined on its location to residential 

communities.    

  

Summary 

Page 77



In summary I object to the granting of an outdoor entertainment licence to Haven leisure on the 

grounds of Public nuisance through the generation of excessive unwanted noise. The entertainments 

can be scheduled 7 days a week for 7 months.  It is also during this period when Preston residents 

can spend time in their own outdoor spaces. 

  

Signed, 

  

16/6/22   

 

 

70. 

 

 I am a resident in Preston, Weymouth, my address is  I am horrified by 

Haven Caravan's application to have outside music and alcohol sales. I have had experience of living 

in an environment where this was allowed and know of the devastating effect it has on local residents. 

Please do not allow it.

 

 

71.  

 

To Dorset Council. 

 

As residence of the lower section of Seven Acres Rd we are already subjected to noise from the park 

from some of their current activities on the site .  

 

The thought that this densely populated area should be subjected to more interference and discomfort 

from the holiday park is simply unacceptable . 

 

Please consider the close proximity to the  residential properties that surround the park. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



 

72.  

 

Dear Sirs 

 
I am emailing to log my objection against the above application for Weymouth Bay Holiday Park.   
 
As a local resident (  I am extremely against the idea of this holiday 
park being allowed to hold events with outdoor music at varying times, as the music carries very 
easily across to my residential home. 
 
Kind regards 

 
 

73. 

 

 Morning, 

 
As a resident who's back garden adjoins the caravan park and a migraine sufferer I wish to put my 
family's views and concerns forward regarding this application. 
 
I can appreciate having this 'area' would enhance Haven's entertainment, however I am concerned 
over the hours they have applied for, particularly the 'noise' level for 7 days a week,  10 hours a day. 
 
One expects some level of noise from people enjoying themselves particularly on bank holidays, for 
example we could hear the entertainment during the jubilee weekend, however it is also 
appropriate and essential that surrounding residents aren't subjected to it continuously. 
 
Surely live or recorded music isn't necessary outside in the morning or over lunchtime. If people want 
this they will go to a music festival not a family holiday park. Talking of families, how will residents with 
children or even holiday makers on site with young children feel about music until 9pm. My daughter 
is a bell ringer at St Andrews Church and throughout the summer months, parents from the holiday 
park regularly ask while we are ringing, sometimes as early as 8pm, what time we will finish practicing 
(Monday evenings) as they are trying to put their children to bed!  
 
Maybe Haven could be granted permission with much scaled down hours. My understanding with 
applications like this is, organisations initially apply for far more than they expect to get so they can be 
seen to scale things back and keep residents happy. 
 
For example no more than 3 days during the week with much shorter than proposed hours and  none 
on Sundays which would give residents time without Haven's music to be able to enjoy some peace 
and quiet in their homes and gardens. 
 
I feel it is also essential that an appropriate decibel limit is also set.  
 
Many thanks 

 
 

 

Page 79



74. 

Page 80



 

 

 

 

Page 81



75.  

 

As a resident and rate payer living adjacent to Weymouth Bay campsite I must strongly protest 

against this or any simiar licence which will lead to even more noise emanating from the campsite. 

 

Sincerely  

 

 

76. 

 

 Dear Sir, 

We were appalled to hear that Haven Holiday Park ,Weymouth, have asked for a license allowing live 
music and selling  of alcohol at their site. Being residents of Weymouth who pay hefty taxes to local 
government offices we feel we have enough in place for holiday makers ,and if they feel a need for 
music and alcohol then they have the option to go into one of our many Pubs in Weymouth town or 
further afield. 

It has become obvious over the years that residents are of no consequence to the District Council 
who do not seem to heed our concerns about changes to our area ,none of which are for the better, 
they just seem to plough on regardless; well this is a step too far and we wish to strongly oppose this 
application. 

  

Yours sincerely 

  

 

77.  
 
Dear licensing team 
I have heard that haven holiday park have requested an extended time for outdoor music and events. 
I am objecting to this. Sadly we already have the fun of hearing music from our home ? from haven 

Page 82



and anymore than we already hear would really be unpleasant. I feel the need for such a length of 
time is unnecessary and would affect residents living locally to the park. 
Regards  

 

 

78. 
 
 I strongly object to the proposal for the introduction of outdoor music events at the above holiday 
camp. 

 

 

79.  

 

I object to Haven Leisure application for licenses for plays, films ,live music, recorded music, 

performance of dance, anything of simllar description and alcohol   

 

REF...OUTDOOR ENTERTAINMENTS 

THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 

The amplification of recorded music, live music, talking,and films will constitute noise polution across 

a wide area of Preston and Surtton Poyntz. The films would also cause light polution. The shape of 

the landscape carries the sound into the natural curves and slopes, often enhanced by the prevailing 

winds. We are told the stage will face away from houses, this will make little difference.  

Enforced listening to noise is proved to be bad for ones mental health. Surely we are entitled to enjoy 

the peace and quiet of our gardens.  Since covid, we have all become even more aware of the 

importance of calm enviroments for our mental  and physical wellbeing.  

 

What about the Church and its services, funerals etc, they will all be overlayed with the Haven 

soundtrack.  A public nuisance. 

 

What about the effect of noise and light pollution not only on people,  but on nesting birds and the 

wildlife that lives on the banks of the river Jordan adjacent to the proposed site and surrounding fields. 

 

 We have beautiful country paths winding through this area,  people come here for this and its 

stunning beaches. Dont destroy what we have with relentless months , weeks and hours of  noise 

pollution.  

 

 

REF..ALCOHOL 

THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 

Page 83



 There is already a bar on site.  Surely we want tourists to spend some of their money in our local 

pubs and resturants,  The combination of alcohol plus outdoor events until 11.00 at night will create 

the possibility  of noisy disorder, As discussed at the public meeting there is public right of way over 

there land , I doubt they can stop outsiders from entering. 

 

 

Summary 

I feel this a substantial change of use,  of Havens land. 

We live in a holiday area and welcome the tourists , often helping them with advice on which bus to 

catch , etc.  We do not want, nor should be forced  to live next to Havens proposed Outdoor Music 

and Entertainment Area,  with all the months, weeks and hours  of amplified music  and  noise,  it will 

constitute a public nuisance. 

 

Signed, 

 

 

80.  

 

Dear Licensing Team 

 

We wish to object to this license application by The Haven Weymouth Bay Holiday Park for an 

outdoor bar (11am-11pm), amplified music and general entertainment (11am-9pm), and outdoor films 

(11am-11pm) at the Haven Bay Holiday Park everyday from Mid-April to the end of October for the 

following reasons: 

 

Depending on the wind direction, most of Preston & Sutton Poyntz will be subjected to intrusive, 

and uninvited music/film screenings etc. for the entire summer. Preston, particularly Seven 

Acres estate is a quiet area with many elderly residents. Although the Haven application states noise 

levels will be restricted we find most noise travels a long way. In fact, on a still night during the Covid 

Lockdown we could hear the wash of the sea breaking on the pebbles most evenings. The Haven 

Holiday Park lies between us and the sea.  

 

Living towards the western end of Seven acres estate we have often found the noise from events held 

at the Spice Ship, which is further away than the Haven Park, intrusive but have come to accept this 

because they only had permission to hold 5 outdoor music events a year and as residents we could 

either tolerate it or go out for the evening.  

Page 84



 

In fact we have had no objection to the occasional blast of music and general entertainment from the 

Haven and Spice Ship (neither of which we would suggest are currently sound limited) over the years 

and this is tolerated, but the possibility of a ‘blast’, be it from music or films, every day from 11am-

11pm with an open ended license is objectionable. 

 

Therefore to permit the Haven to have a daily, outdoor performance license from April to October 

would be totally unacceptable. 

 

If any part of this application is approved it should be for a limited number of agreed events to be held 

over the year, which the Haven Bay Holiday Park should be asked to give adequate written notice to 

the 400+ residents who live on the Seven Acre Estate, the 200+ residents of Fisherbridge & Halstock 

Close, as well as the residents living on Preston Road, Hazel Drive & its environs and the 700+ 

residents of Sutton Poynts.  

 

This notice should include the dates and times of all the proposed events. The programme could be 

decided upon each month or for the entire season. Of prime importance is the communication of 

these events to the local community affected by this change in their locality. The Haven Management 

seem to think that they should only communicate with the residents who live directly on the 

boundaries of the Park. But as previously noted noise travels in this natural amphitheatre formed at 

the base of the Downs to the sea. 

 

 

Although we are not night workers and do not have children living with us now, we have to be up for 

work by 6am and do not view the prospect of being kept awake at night until at least 11pm on a 

regular basis. We are also concerned that local residents who are night workers & do have children 

could find their lives severely disrupted if noise and other intrusions are subjected on them from 11am 

until 11pm most of the year.  

 

The open-air bar 11am-11pm on the site is also of concern. The Weymouth Bay Park has a Public 

Right of Way through it, may local residents use this to access the beach areas and there is 

a possibility that they will feel intimidated or worse, if the drinking gets out off hand.  

 

The Staff operating the proposed bar will not know if the customer is resident on the Park or not, and 

from what I understand the Park management do not perceive this to be an issue. However even if 

the customer is a resident staying on the Park there can be major issues. Littlesea, a sister Haven 

park in Weymouth, experienced a terrible issue only last year with a very disruptive ‘resident’ family 

which lead to The Haven Company closing all the Bar & Leisure Facilities, in all three parks in 

Weymouth, over one weekend. 

 

How can the Weymouth Bay Park Management not perceive that drunken & disorderly behaviour 

could spill out of the Park into the residential areas closest to the Park. Preston & the surrounding 

areas (see above) do not experience such public disorder currently, and accept we may not, if this all-

day, open-air bar is given permission. However with no control on access, some off-site visitors may 

think it fun to visit the Holiday Park, spend a day at the bar and then leave so drunk that issues arise 

in the surrounding streets & or on public transport. 

Page 85



 

And finally an open-air all day bar located opposite activities aimed primarily at children (Mini Aerial 

Adventure & Jump Stage), could propose a risk of harm to them if drunken disorderly lads decide 

to ‘kick off’ or climb either of these activities, fuelled by alcohol. 

 

 

Regards 

 

 

 

 

81.  

 

To whom it may concern 

 

I would like to state my objection to the request from Haven for a license for outdoor music, outdoor 

events and for the sale of alcohol.  

  

My objections are as follows: 

 

There are already 3 pubs within walking distance of Haven caravan site, which adequately provide for 

both visitors and locals. 

 

The noise generated from outdoor music would affect local residents adversely and again the local 

pubs provide this throughout the Summer months, within the guidelines laid out by the local council. 

These events can be heard throughout Preston and Sutton Poyntz but are tolerated as they are not 

too frequent and again do not continue beyond the allowable hours laid out by the council.   

 

Any further outdoor music events would therefore be unpleasant to the local residents and would 

impinge upon their otherwise tranquil environment.  

 

Page 86



I therefore feel that additional outdoor music events and alcohol sales is unnecessary and would have 

a detrimental effect on the local community and would only serve to enable Haven to increase its 

revenue stream at the cost of others.  A request by Eweleaze Farm, for the sale of alcohol and 

outdoor entertainment, was rejected a few years ago for similar reasons after a huge turnout of 

residents in opposition and if permission were to be granted to Haven, it would no doubt encourage 

Eweleaze to reapply and  open the door for even more requests of this nature from nearby caravan 

and campsites, of which there are numerous in the area.  The resulting adverse effect this would have 

on the community would be enormous. 

 

I therefor urge you to seriously consider the above and the effect that granting such a license would 

have on the communities of Preston and Sutton Poyntz. 

 

Regards 

 

 

 

82. 

 

 Dear Sir,  

I would like to express our objection to the application for outdoor music and events including the sale 

of alcohol by Heaven Holiday Park. 

We believe it will disturb the peace and tranquillity of the surrounding neighbourhood where we live. 

 

Thanking you. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



83.  

- I would like to register my objection to the above license application  
 

 

84. 

- I wish my complaint to be noted, as a resident of Preston, that I’m strongly against the 
above application by Haven. 
 

 

85. I live in Wainwright Close in Preston and noise from the Haven Holiday Park would definitely be 

heard from here. This is a nice, peaceful area of Weymouth and I would like it to stay that way. 

 

I therefore  wish to register my objection to the license application. 

 

86.  

 

I am a resident in Preston Road close to Haven Weymouth Bay campsite,I am of the opinion and 

many others that those living in preston road seven acres,fisherbridge Road etc do not need high 

volume of music and loud people we already have two pubs in preston road for entertainment 

therefore I am objecting to the said proposal.  

 

Yours sincerely  

 

 

87.  

 

From

 

Re the above application. 

 

I have lived at the above address for the past 25 years. 

 

Haven is a caravan park it is not a holiday complex such as Butlins. It is located in an area of densely 

built domestic housing with many young families. Over the past years since Haven took control the 

park has become what I consider to be  bad neighbour, Why do I say that? In the past we have been 

Page 88



subjected to flyposting all along Preston  Road and at times on the main road from Dorchester. Twice 

we have objected to the expansion of Haven into ‘Green Field Sites’. Prior to Lockdown, in August in 

recent years we have been subjected to very loud music and an MC with a microphone blasting us 

with unwanted noise.  My house is around 400m from the area where the noise is generated, sitting in 

my garden on a hot August day is not possible. Does Haven have planning approval for outdoor 

music??? Adding alcohol will only amplify the loud music. 

 

Haven are aware they are bad neighbours so for this application the required notice of the application 

was posted in a field where very few residents walk in an effort to obscure the planning notice. Few 

residents were informed of the application. 

 

Please reject this application and check if Haven are breaking any rules with their August music 

sessions. 

 

I am not a NIMBY but this application is a step too far and must be rejected. 

 

 

 

88.  

 

Good Afternoon 

 

I am writing to strongly object to the granting of this License mainly due to noise nuisance. This 

holiday park is situated in a very densely populated area and we already have noise issues in 

the summer months from the park. 

 

Outdoor music and talking, especially when amplified carries a long distance and even though the 

representative form Haven said there would be directional speakers and sound limiters the sound will 

still carry. They stated that there had been an environmental report but how that be representative 

before the fact, I doubt it took into consideration how noise travels. 

 

In this area we have to put up with loud amplified music and talking from Haven, The Spice Ship pub 

and The Springhead Pub, which just shows how much the sound travels. 

 

I live around 400 metres from the site and would like to be able to sit in my garden and enjoy some 

quiet peace. 

 

As for the representative from Haven stating that 15 houses were consulted that is a joke, that cannot 

be construed as a representation of nearby residents, this should have been all residents who would 

Page 89



be affected by the noise. To imply that only 15 houses and gardens would be affected is plainly 

wrong. 

 

Also as one of the Councillors at the Council meeting last Tuesday stated the local Councillors should 

have been invited. 

 

All they care about is making more money, they are not interested in being good neighbours. 

The notice re the application was hidden in a field and if someone hadn't spotted it we would probably 

be none the wiser! 

 

Also why is the application for such long hours? Playing loud films until 11pm is ridiculous in a built up 

area, I wouldn't think families staying at the site would be too happy about that either when trying to 

get their children to sleep. 

 

 

Please reject this application. 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

89.  
 
For the attention of Dorset Council: 
 
As a resident at Preston I strongly object to the proposal of an outdoor licence for Haven to 
sell alcohol and hold events of outdoor music at varying times. This is a residential area and to grant 
such a licence would be unacceptably too disturbing.  
Yours sincerely 

 

 

90.  

 

Dear Councillors 

 
Strong Objection to Haven Outdoor License Application 
 
I live in Stroudley Crescent at the top of Brunel Drive hill.  
 
Every summer 'Haven' already hold outdoor events with loud heavy bass music. We can even hear 
the words.  The sound travels and can be heard all over Preston.  
 

Page 90



Once in a while it is tolerable, but to have the possibility of it blasting out during the daytime and 
evening is totally unacceptable to Preston residents.  
 
Many visitors to Haven and tent campers on the cliffs coming for a peaceful, relaxing holiday would 
also have to tolerate the noise. Not a good visitor welcome.  
 
No one wants to have 'Haven's' choice of music inflicted upon them.   
 
Please refuse the License application 
 
Kind regards 

 
 

91.  

 

Dear Councillors 

 

Strong Objection to Haven Outdoor Licence Application 

 

I live in Stroudley Crescent at the top of Brunel Drive, it is just 500 yards or 460 meters from my 

house to the Haven entertainment centre   

 

Every summer 'Haven' already hold outdoor events with loud heavy bass music. We can even hear 

the words.  The sound travels and can be heard all over Preston.  

 

Additionally The Spice Ship pub also hold music events with equally invasive sound levels 

 

Once in a while is tolerable, but to have the possibility of it blasting out regularly during the daytime 

and evening is totally unacceptable. 

 

We live in a quiet neighbourhood and enjoy the peace and quiet of our garden, this is impossible 

when there are noisy music events so close to home 

 

No one wants to have 'Haven's' choice of music inflicted upon them or indeed The Spice Ship.   

 

Please do all that you can to refuse the License application 

 

Best wishes 

 

Page 91



 

 

92.  

 

Dear Team 

 

I write to formally object to the application by Haven Preston Road for outdoor music, events, films 

and alcohol with varying times.   

 

I see the application is for outdoor entertainment 7 days a week 11am - 9pm, with 3 days a week until 

11pm. 

 

This is unacceptable.  

 

Residents of the area could be subjected to excess noise, potentially travelling for quite a way in 

every direction.  

 

Haven already has license to entertain its guests indoors with plenty of other outdoor facilities, I feel 

there is no need to extend this outside.  

 

Residents of Weymouth choose Preston for its comparative peace.  No doubt visitors to the holiday 

park also enjoy the situation of the Park, having access to the town's other facilities but enjoying 

almost rural surroundings, being close to the Ridgeway, coast and coast path. 

Page 92



 

As things stand, we hear an increase of road noise during holiday season which encroaches on the 

enjoyment of our own properties and causes issues for access and daily life including work.  

 

Noise from those leaving and returning on foot to and from the Park using the various footpaths 

through the housing estate with little regard for residents is already an issue. 

 

Accepting that this is a seaside town and that tourism is of general benefit to the town, as a resident I 

do what I can to reduce noise by closing my windows when necessary but this has at times made me 

and my son feel somewhat unsafe.  

 

As I have to conduct my routine life - working, childcare - I cannot support an application that would 

increase the risk of further noise disturbance.  

 

Please do not allow this license extension, I can see absolutely no benefit and potentially many 

problems. 

 

Sincerely  

 

 

 

93. 

 

 To whom it may concern 

I write to formally object to the application for an outdoor events licence submitted by Haven Holiday 
Park. I am a local resident and oppose this application on the grounds that such events would have a 
devastating impact on my home life, and the Preston area as a whole.  
 
My address is
 
I hope the local authorities will clearly see the damaging affect this application would have on 
residents. 
 
Kind Regards 

Page 93



 
 

94.  

 

Dear sirs, 

 
I have just found out about the licensing application from Haven Leisure referred to in the subject of 
this email. 
 
Firstly, as it is I believe a matter of legal obligation for any applicant to make notice of any such 
licence application clearly and publicly visible in order that the local population be easily informed, I 
have to highlight that this has clearly not been done - presumably in an effort not to attract attention 
and subsequent objection. I would urge the council to investigate how well Haven Leisure has 
displayed such notices. 
 
Secondly, I most strongly object to the licence requested on the grounds of significant noise pollution 
and disturbance.  
 
I live at the top of a hill overlooking the Haven site (my address being

, so my home is within 450 metres of the caravan park as the crow flies. Haven Leisure's 
proposed application which would allow it to hold significant noise-causing activities of varying types 
(including but not limited to live music, recorded music, film screening etc) for up to 12 hours a day, 7 
days a week for a seven month period is utterly untenable for local residents. 
 
It should be noted that this is the period of the year when the weather is more pleasant and residents 
spend more time outdoors in their garden and having their windows open. It would be ludicrous to 
allow such a licence application and in so doing to allow such continual noise pollution that would 
impair the quality of life of so many local residents. 
 
I trust that Dorset County Council will fully acknowledge that it is there to serve the needs and 
interests of the communities that elect its members and that it will reject the licensing application from 
Haven Leisure out of hand. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
 

95.  

 

As a local resident, please may I raise an objection to the above application on the following grounds. 

 

PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 

 

(NOISE) The proposed site of this facility is far too close to residential properties for occupants not to 

suffer from noise, even when inside their houses.  Clapping, Laughing, Cheering, Shouting etc will be 

Page 94



very intrusive, regardless of any 'noise limiting' arrangements installed on the 'Regulated 

Entertainment', which is as yet unproven. 

 

(LITTER) Point M (b.5) States Polycarbonate Glasses will be used.  The environmental impact is 

obvious, especially due to proximity of the site to the River Jordan which would carry any discarded 

rubbish to the sea.   

 

(LIGHT POLLUTION) The facility will have to be well lit for the safety of visitors and will have to be 

illuminated well after 2300 hrs to ensure they depart safely.  I understand that the movie screen will 

be orientated away from the residential houses, but it will create an ambient light also.  

 

(ODOUR) This outdoor facility will no doubt attract smokers.  The prevailing wind will carry this 

towards the residential properties. 

 

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM 

 

Section 11 of The Children Act 2004 places a duty on organisations to ensure their functions and 

services are discharged with regard to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children.   

 

That does not just mean children on holiday, staying on the site, it includes all children.  Unlike an 

indoor facility that can be controlled by door staff, this site is open air and Haven has 2 public 

footpaths running across it, controlling access is not possible.  The children of local residents' will be 

able to hear dialogue from visitors and movies that might not be age appropriate.  Item K in the 

application, in relation to Adult Entertainment states "NONE" Are we to believe then that only British 

Board of Film Classification Films rated as "U" will be shown?  It is unlawful to project restricted 

movies to an undetermined audience.  The new Top Gun Movie is a 12a ie suitable for 12 years and 

over.  An 8 or 9 year in their own home/garden or walking on a footpath should not be subjected to 

non age appropriate material,  or exposed to smoking and (possibly excessive) alcohol 

consumption.  Nor should they have their sleep disturbed, especially on school nights. 

 

GENERAL 

 

The days and hours covered by this application are vastly excessive.  It is being rushed through by 

Haven in an underhand manner with very little public consultation.  The notices were put up in an area 

where they can easily be overlooked and 15 households only (who were deemed by Haven to be the 

most effected, hence they do admit the facility will be impactive) were invited to meet with them with 

only 4 days notice.  The 2 who were able to adjust their calendar quickly enough to attend, felt brow-

beaten and railroaded. 

 

If the application is approved, it should be for fewer hours and a shorter calendar.  This will minimise 

the disturbance to residents and the impact on local children, but still provide visitors with an 

enjoyable experience.  If they wish to continue drinking, say after a movie, they can repair to the 

indoor, on site facility.   It will also reduce the likelihood of excessive calls about noise to Dorset Police 

Page 95



or the Environmental Health Teams (who deal with Noise Pollution) both of whom are hard pressed 

already. 

 

 

SUGGESTION 

 

Opening in School Holidays only. 

 

12 noon - 2100 hrs 

 

3 days per week  

 

Programme of films and their BBCF Classification to be advertised to public well in advance to 

safeguard local children. 

 

Kind regards 

 

 

 

 

96.  

 

HI  

 
I am writing to formally object to the application by the Haven Weymouth Bay Holiday park for outdoor 
music and events licence. 

 
 

Page 96



 
 
97.  

Both my wife and I oppose this application. Preston is a residential area  and to 
have  a series of outdoor  events together with music at this site would be intrusive to the tranquility of 
the area.  We therefore hope the Council will refuse this application. 

 
 
 
98.  

I understand that the Haven Holiday park has applied for a licence for outdoor music.  I wish to object 

to this as it will affect many residential properties in the area. The site is also very close to St 

Andrew's church which regularly carries out weddings and funerals.  

 I am sure that Haven will say that the volume will be very low.  Unfortunately, after a few weeks, the 
volume usually increases.  The only way of proving how loud it is is to contact the council 
environmental health inspector, who will take readings to ascertain if it is too high.  The loudest times 
tend to be at the weekend and inspectors do not generally want to be called out then. 
I managed a group of hotels in Weymouth for 40 years and one of the biggest guest complaints was 
that they could not sleep because of the high level of music at bars and discos and these were inside 
buildings someway from the hotels. 
The holiday parks seem to be constantly asking for additional concessions, be it caravan sites turned 
into lodges, for year-round use. Touring campsites turned into fixed glamping huts and so on. 
I hope you will take into account my objections and reject the licence. 

 
 
 

99.  

 

Good evening 

 
We strongly object to the application for outdoor music and events at Haven Holiday Park under the 
prevention of a public nuisance. 
 
We are residents of Preston and every year we hear the music at the caravan park and this will be 
even worse if this is permitted from 11am until 11pm 7 days a week. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
 
100. 

 

 Comment on the Haven outdoor and container licence application 

 
I was too late to comment on the Planning Application by Weymouth Bay Holiday Park (WBHP) for 
the Stage and Screen, and also nearly missed the Licencing Application. Not enough is being done to 
let local residents know about these applications. 
 

Page 97



If the Licencing Application is approved it will permit the equivalent of a “festival” on the site every day 
of the week for 10 hours per day for seven months of every year, April to October. 
 
Prevention of public nuisance, Prevention of crime and disorder 
WBHP acknowledge that there is public access across the Park and therefore they cannot control 
access to the open area. This means they will have no idea of how many people will attend or the 
desirability of some attendees e.g. how will they eject troublemakers and exclude those known 
previously to be disruptive. 
 
Protection of children from harm 
The area has facilities for children, who will therefore be attracted to the site. With no control over 
access children could be put at risk with drinking permitted in the same area. 
 
Prevention of public nuisance: 
There is no mention of lavatory facilities for attendees. There would have to be a considerable 
number, otherwise contamination may take place. Bowleaze Cove, into which the River Jordan 
abutting the site flows, has already been cited for low water quality.  
 
Prevention of public nuisance, Prevention of crime and disorder 
There will be considerable increase in traffic and footfall in surrounding residential areas. 
People attending from elsewhere than WBHP will have difficulty parking, and on leaving are likely to 
cause considerable noise and aggravation to surrounding residential areas. 
 
Prevention of public nuisance: 
Noise travels a considerable distance and can cause great distress. In Preston the sound of live 
music events in Weymouth can clearly be heard over two miles away. It is noticeable that the Stage is 
orientated away from the majority of the WBHP caravans. Perhaps they have no confidence in the 
sound damping measures proposed? 
 
In conclusion the area is not suitable for this sort of activity on this scale in a residential area, and the 
Licence should not be granted. 

 
 
 
101.  

 

Dear Sir or Madam 

I wish to lodge my opposition in the strongest possible terms to Haven's application for a license for 
outdoor music, events and the sale of alcohol on their Preston site. 
 
I feel that, if a license were to be granted, the resulting additional noise and alcohol consumption will 
have a negative impact on nearby residents and their ability to enjoy their homes and gardens as they 
have come to expect. 
 
Thank you for reading this. 

 
 

Page 98



 

 

102.  

 

To: The Licencing Committee Members, 

 
Re: Haven Outdoor Stage and Container Bar Area; application for a Premises Licence. 
 
Subject: Objection to the application for the above Premises Licence 
 
As a lifelong resident of Weymouth and Portland, resident of Preston since 1988 and registered voter, 
I object to the above application for a Premises Licence, which should be refused on the following 
grounds and for the following reasons, that granting the application will: 

1. Pose an elevated risk of crime and disorder: 
(i) The application seeks a licence to supply alcohol for consumption from 11.00 until 

23.00, which provides more than ample opportunity for excessive consumption by 
individuals to occur, which accordingly, increases the potential for disorder to occur. 

(ii) The measures indicated in the application for the prevention of crime and disorder are 
merely procedural and reactive only; and do not include any proactive measure(s) to 
limit the quantity of supply of alcohol to groups or individuals, or to promptly address 
any behavioural or conduct issue(s) which may arise from the excessive consumption 
of alcohol, the effects of which can be exacerbated by open air exposure in summer 
temperatures. 

2. Pose a potential risk to Public Safety: 
(iii) The proposed application area is not sufficiently segregated from public access, 

several public footpaths whether official or otherwise pass close to the application 
area; there are no meaningful measures in place to segregate activities undertaken in 
the application area from casual interaction by members of the public; who could be 
affected by behaviour or conduct created by or arising from the sale and consumption 
of alcohol over an extensive period of the day in an open air location. 

3. Create a public nuisance:  
(iv) The application seeks a premises licence to conduct activities from three weeks 

before Good Friday until the end of October. The earliest date on which Good Friday 
can occur is the 22nd March; therefore this application would permit activities to be 
conducted from 2nd March until the end of October; which comprises an unreasonably 
long overall duration and proportion of the calendar year. 

(v) Holidaying Visitors to the park will be subjected to noise from the activities for on 
average two weeks duration; residents will potentially be subjected to that noise 
continually every day for a full eight months of the year. 

(vi) Preston is a mixed residential area; some residents need to both retire to bed and 
rise early for work or other purposes; the potential for noise to emanate from the 
application area until 23.00 may prove detrimental to the health and wellbeing being 
of those residents. 

(vii)  The application seeks a licence to conduct activities from 11.00 until 23.00 seven 
days a week, creating the prospect and potential for intolerable disturbance of 
residents by the permitted activities for a large part of every day throughout the 
licenced period. 

(viii)  The activities are proposed to be undertaken in the open air; accordingly, there will 
be no barrier to sound transmission from the activities across the local residential 
area. 

(ix)  My experience of living in Preston confirms that noise emanating from open air 
events when they have been staged in the local area, is audible across large part of 
the residential area; whilst there is no reasonable objection to these occasional 
events, they do serve to inform the level of disturbance likely to be experienced by 
residents as a consequence of this licence, if approved. 

Page 99



(x)  The nearest residential property is located approximately only 67 metres from the 
application area, which is intolerably close to a live outdoor performance area. 

(xi)  My own home is located approximately 400 metres from the application area, current 
experience confirms that certain entertainment activities currently conducted in the 
holiday park are clearly audible from my home, including clearly audible voices and 
music. 

4. Prevention of harm to children: 
(xii) The proposed licenced activities comprise films, plays and music performances; all 

activities to which children of all ages, whether accompanied or unaccompanied by 
adults may be attracted and may attend; and with the sale of alcohol in the immediate 
vicinity. There are no measures proposed in the application as to how children may 
be protected from exposure to potential unpleasant or violent conduct which could 
arise from the excessive consumption of alcohol. The proposal to adopt a ‘Challenge 
25’ regime whilst sounding reasonable in theory will be difficult to enforce in practice; 
have the applicants properly considered the probability that a significant number of 
visitors to the site who may have arrived from the beach or pool etc are unlikely to be 
carrying identity documents, particularly when minimally dressed in the height of 
summer?   

 
In summary this licence application is both ill considered by the applicant and inconsiderate towards 
the residents of Preston; inasmuch as it both fails to promote good neighbourliness by a significant 
business operating in very close proximity to an extensive residential neighbourhood and fails to 
respect the rights of the residents of Preston to the quiet enjoyment of their property. 

 
 

103.  

 

I wish to comment on the above application made by Haven for an ourside license for music 

and  events. I wish to say that this application should be refused,  

this runs for almost 8 months of the year seven days a week and this would be unacceptable. 
During the summer Sutton Poyntz has occasional outside events which is annoying as we can hear 
the tanoy and music in our house and garden, however they are occasional not every day of the 
week,  
As the crow flies I understand that the Haven site is closer, so will obviously this would be really awful. 
We would have no peace 7 days a week for months 
Please reject this application. 
Yours faithfully 

 
 

104.  

 

Dear Sir/Madam 

 
Re : HAVEN HOLIDAYS outdoor music and container license application. 
 
 

Page 100



Please accept this email as an OBJECTION to the proposed license application, on the grounds of 
NUISANCE. 
 
Whilst we appreciate that from a business point of view, providing on-site entertainment  for holiday 
makers would encourage them to spend more money at the holiday park (boosting profits), we do not 
see that this should be at the expense of local residents' comfort. 
 
A great benefit of living in the Preston locale is the peace and quiet - much is situated WITHIN an 
area of outstanding natural beauty (AONB). Amplified sound (potentially distorted on the wind) from 
11:00am until 23:00 pm every day is not appropriate. 
 
If a license has to be granted, then we request that music is NON-AMPLIFIED, and film sound is 
limited to a NON-DETECTABLE level at the site boundary. 
 
We have no objection to an outdoor alcohol license being granted, just the amplified outdoor sound 
daily over periods of up to 12 hours. 
 
Please acknowledge receipt of this OBJECTION. 
 
Regards 

 
 

105.  

 

Dear Sirs,  

 

I write in refusal of a license for outdoor music and events including sale of alcohol. 

 

There are two Haven Holiday Parks on Preston Road.  

 

Should outdoor ‘music’ be approved, the sound from the two Haven Holiday Parks would resonate 

around and throughout and up the valley, channelling it through Sutton Poyntz to the South West 

Ridgeway and beyond. 

I can attest to this, having been the recipient of outdoor ‘music’ on two previous occasions, completely 

ruining beautifully peaceful Dorset summer days, which I should have been at liberty to spend in my 

garden.  

I walked to the Ridgeway to avoid the noise, to no avail. The noise from the ‘music’ was heard there, 

too. 

 

Page 101



 

 

106. 

 

 Dear Dorset Council 

We wish to strongly object to the planning application by Weymouth Bay Holiday Park to have music, 
film and general entertainment potentially every day from April ato October beween the hours of 11am 
and 11pm. 

The occasional music events are generally tolerated by local residents though even then the music 
can be aggravating and volume not always controlled, particularly as the main sound is the ‘thump 
thump thump’ of the base.  Do not underestimate the noise disruption that loud outside music causes 
and the distance that it travels – my estimate would be disturbance to a radius of 1.5 mile (the 
distance from Weymouth Holiday Park to Overcombe Roundabout) and all of Preston and Sutton 
Poynes. 

To have this constantly for 6 months would be quite unbearable and have further consequences. 

 

OK, so it will make life earlier for the camp not to have to apply each time but it gives total control to 
the camp w.r.t. frequency with nothing the council can do about it as they would have given blanket 
approval. 

 

Interesting that they have used this approach elsewhere.  Raises a number of questions.  

How many other venues? 

How long have they been in operation? 

How many complaints have there been? And the nature of the complaints? 

And lastly, and most important, the dates, frequency and nature of the various entertainments that 
have taken place at each of the other venues? Have they been sparing on numbers or excessive? 
May give an idea of whether events may be monthly, weekly or worse.  I do not think we should 
accept an answer that this data is not available. 

Page 102



  

Sleep.  While the local population is mainly elderly (who do need their sleep as well) there are a 
number of younger families with young children as well as in the Holiday Park itself. Putting them 
down to sleep is not going to go well with music blaring out till 11.00pm.  Workers in the area, some of 
whom have early start times, will also be affected by the daily dose of noisy music to the late hours. 

 

Housing.  Selling of houses will be difficult with potential buyers being aware that they would face loud 
music 12 hours a day for the 6 summer months.  In consequence house values in the area will be 
compromised – of considerable concern to the older population as their house represents an 
important part of their retirement planning. 

Regards 

 
 

107.  
 
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN 
 
As Residents of Preston, we are EXTREMELY CONCERNED about the above proposal. These 
Holiday Parks have managed for years with the existing all round entertainment without the need, to 
bring loud music outside for various events. 
 
The needs of all local residents must be the priority as we live here permanently, and pay our Council 
Tax and the holiday makers do not.  
 
It would therefore be a total disregard and disrespect to all local people who are mainly retired, having 
to put up with EXCESSIVE NOISE.  
 
We have been there, done it, and DONT WANT IT!!!  

 
 

108. 

 

 Dear Sir/Madam.  

 
I would like to comment in objection to the proposal by Haven Leisure and Weymouth Bay Holiday 
camp, to initiate a permanent or semi permanent open air, licenced entertainments space at 
Weymouth Bay Holiday Park in Preston. 
 
This proposal is very likely to be detrimental to the peace & quality of life of the local residents of 
Preston, not least due to the frequency of these desired amplified events. 
 
We all know that sound travels far further at night, & while I'm sure no one objects to the occasional 
open air amplified event hosted by local businesses, (myself included), although they can be heard 

Page 103



widely across the village, the regularity of the activity proposed here is bound to become intrusive 
very quickly. The haven site itself does already host at least one all day open air event, which is fine, 
due to it being isolated in nature, despite someone continuously shouting into a microphone during 
the day. 
 
As I have mentioned, occasional amplified, outdoor events held by The Haven, The Spice Ship & the 
Springhead & anyone else, are fine due to their occasional nature & the fact that they are, (usually), 
pre-advertised. The difference here is that, this is proposed to be happening numerous times per 
week for the whole of the summer months, day & or night, as and when they feel like it. This will soon 
become extremely intrusive to local people's day to day life, particularly the elderly and those with 
school age children. 
 
While I myself, live at the top end of Puddledock lane, I can still hear all of the events previously 
mentioned. Some local resident's houses, particularly in Fisherbridge Rd, are within 200 feet of this 
proposed entertainments space and Halstock close not much further. Added to this, the event's are 
likely to attract campers coming down from the other Haven site at Seaview, who are likely to cause 
disturbance to residents in Halstock Close & Church road, by cutting through there, while returning to 
their site after 11.00 p.m. 
 
For myself, I do not wish to have to live with my windows closed all summer, or be unable to enjoy the 
peace of my own outdoor space in order to avoid the noise emitted by this site and the regularity of its 
events. 
 
While I accept that people on holiday wish to have fun, this should not be at the detriment to the lives 
of local residents. The park already has a clubhouse which is where regular amplified events should 
be taking place, indoors, as is the case with the more regular amplified entertainment held by the 
other licenced premises in the area. 
 
Please consider the way of life of local residents. Had we wished to live in the middle of an open air 
entertainment hub, we would likely have purchased our houses in town rather than in a village. 
 
Kind Regards. 

 
 

109. 
 
 Dear Sir, 
I have just been informed by friends living in Old Granary  Close of this application and am writing to 
urge you to ensure this application is refused. 
There has been insufficient information about this given to the residents living in the area with 
notices  displayed in secluded places where they are unlikely to be seen.  They are all horrified to 
hear of this proposed intrusion and hope you will be able to put their minds at rest and assure them of 
your support. 
With best wishes 

Page 104



 

110. 

 

 I am saddened to learn of the application for amplified music at the Haven Weymouth Bay Holiday 

Park.  

As a former resident of Weymouth until 2019 I know the importance of tourism to the town. 
I object to this application  
1.  Amplified music which cannot be controlled in your own home or garden is unfair to residents. 
2.  Amplified music which cannot be controlled in your own lodge/chalet/caravan is unfair to holiday 
makers at the actual Haven Holiday Park irrespective of age. 
3. The actual amplified music sessions are both too long in regard to daytime itself and the number of 
months proposed. 
 
I therefore ask that this planning application be rejected in order to allow both residents and holiday 
makers to enjoy Weymouth. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
 

111.  

 

Dear Sir or Madam 

 
I would like to comment on the application by Haven (Seaview) Caravan park for a licence to perform 
live music and films etc on an outdoor stage. 
 
Firstly, this application has just been brought to my notice; I would have thought that as near 
neighbours, we should have been notified of it. The area shown for the stage can't be more than a 
couple of hundred metres from our houses in Holcombe Close. 
 
Secondly, I wish to object to the proposal on the grounds of preventing a public nuisance.  
We already experience excess noise, particularly during the summer months, but tolerate it, not 
wishing to deny holiday makers some fun. 
The excess noise can take the form of music etc from caravans, dogs barking, loud partying, drunken 
arguments, discos from the Park venues, Owners Events with music, tractors laden with gas bottles 
crashing along Church Road every day at least once and occasionally the presence of the Police 
Helicopter hovering over the site at night!  
It can make sitting outside in the garden or sleeping at night less than relaxing. As I say, we tolerate it 
without comment... 
 
The prospect of added noise, on an outdoor stage, potentially from 11 in the morning till 9 at night 
with films and alcohol provided until 11 p.m. is to be deplored. How can anyone think this won't cause 
a public nuisance? I notice a "sound limiter" will be fitted to the amplifier but I don't know how you can 
hope to limit the sound of people partying.  
 
My feelings are this - if people wish to attend films or music events during their holiday, then they 
should go into town to the appropriate venues. After all, Haven claim to be bringing extra revenue to 
Weymouth; this set-up will be taking it away from the bars, clubs and Cineworld. I think they would 
like the extra revenue for themselves... 

Page 105



But above all, they should not bring extra noise and light pollution to an area which is, in essence, 
residential and semi-rural. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
 

112.         

 

Re Haven outdoor music and alcohol license application.  

 
This holiday park is centrally positioned in Preston, immediately adjacent to residential areas which 
are already subject to a lot of noise pollution from increasing traffic and numbers of visitors.  
Any noise on Haven Holiday Park can be heard all over Preston, both in residential areas and other 
holiday parks and campsites, due to its central location, the lie of the land and prevailing winds. It is 
not sensible to risk increasing noise in this area for residents or for visitors to other campsites and 
holiday accomodation. 
 
I therefore object strongly to granting this license. 

 
 
 
113.  
 
Re: application from Haven Campsite for a premises License for an outdoor stage and container bar 
area at Weymouth Bay campsite including Live and recorded music. 
 
My partner and I reside at and back directly onto the campsite.  At present we 
can quite easily hear the music and singing from the indoor entertainment when sitting in our garden 
and are not particularly impressed with the disturbance from this - let alone having the entertainment 
outside.  The band practice and live singing happens on a frequent basis throughout the season and 
often more than once a day.  It’s not something that is NOT welcome but we have to endure 
regardless. 
 
As residents we have a right to peace and quiet in our own homes.  I believe the environmental noise 
volume will be unreasonably above the legal limit for a residential area especially as Weymouth Bay 
is on a raised gradient to the rest of the local area. Add to this the noise of screaming children and 
anti-social behaviour that comes with drinking alcohol both in the outdoor stage area and when 
returning back to the caravans (nearest to us is less than 50m). 
 
There has been NO consideration for the residents with this application and I strongly object to the 
above application (And any future licence applications of this kind - temporary ones included for 
Weymouth Bay). 
 
Kind regards 

 

Page 106



 
 
114.  
 
Dear Sirs,   
 
I would like to add my objection to outdoor music at Haven Holiday Park.  During the  summer months 
it is a pleasure to sit outside, to enjoy some peace and quiet not to listen to music from the Haven 
holiday Park.  I live in Telford Close a quiet cul-de-sac and would like it to remain so.  I am amazed 
that a number of councillors voted in favour of the event. Maybe they do not live within an area that 
will be affected!   I hope enough residents object. 

 

115. 

 Further to my recent email on the above: I mistakenly referred to the application as coming from the 

Seaview Caravan Park; I of course meant the Weymouth Bay Park (although it's all owned by Haven 

and they will no doubt share the facilities if planning permission and a licence are granted). We are 

surrounded by caravan parks. 

 
 
116. 
 
 Dear Sir 
 
I am a local resident in Preston and I am emailing to let you know I am against the licence for outdoor 
music, events and sale of alcohol at Haven Holiday Park.  
 
As locals we accommodate many tourists to our village every year but I am concerned the noise will 
break the peace and tranquility we currently have.  
 
I walk my dog every morning very early and see a lot of wildlife including deer and foxes and this will 
be detrimental to their lives as well causing them to move away.  
 
Yours Faithfully 

 
 
 

117.  
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
I am a local resident in Preston and I do not want Haven Holiday park to have a license for outdoor 
music and events - including the sale of alcohol. 
 
Preston is a lovely village and I feel this would disturb the peaceful, quiet and elderly area as sound 
travels far.  
 
Yours Faithfully, 
 

Page 107



 
 

118.  
 
Dear sir/madam, 
I would like to register my objection to the proposed license application for outdoor music made by 
Haven holiday parks. As a resident of Preston we put up with the noise the park generates including 
music recognising its contribution to the local economy. To add to this further would be detrimental 
and intrusive to residents both old and young, as well as having the potential to create negative 
influences in what is a residential area.  

 

 

119.  
 
Good morning, 
 
I am writing with regards  to the application made by Haven, Weymouth Bay Holiday Park, Preston 
Road, for a premises licence to be granted. 
I am a local resident and wish to contest this application on a number of grounds. Preston is a 
residential area where both families with young children and retired people reside as well as people 
who work shifts, like myself. 
Residents live in this quiet community because of the peace and tranquility which it offers, to even 
consider granting this application is outrageous and a disgrace, the impact of the noise and 
associated Anti Social Behaviour will be significant. The acoustics and noise levels from the stage, 
films and music, will impact significantly on local residents trying to enjoy a quality of life. To even 
consider granting a licence for the hours of 11-00 to 21-00 daily is wholly unacceptable and 
unnecessary, the repercussions for the local community will be enormous and will spoil the local 
economy and living conditions of those residing in the area.  
As a result of the proposal there will undoubtedly be a rise in associated criminality and alcohol 
related offences taking place. No consideration or thought has been given to those of us who live 
nearby, the impact it will have on property prices as well as the existing quality of life enjoyed by this 
close knit community.  
There is no requirement for such a licence to be granted, it is wholly inappropriate and unnecessary 
and clearly no thought or consideration has been given to the people who live in the area of Preston. 
I contest this application in the strongest terms and no consultation or discussions having been made 
with the local community prior to the application being submitted. There is no need for such a 
development to take place on the Haven site, there are already pre-existing places for entertainment 
on site and what is being proposed is not in keeping with the area of Preston.  
Purely based on factors such as public nuisance, alcohol related criminality, noise pollution and 
disruption to the local community, this application should and must be rejected and or withdrawn. 
 
Your sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Page 108



 

120. 

 

 Dear Sir  

 

I object to the proposed application for an outdoor entertainment licence as the campsite is very close 

to several residential areas. I live in Fisherbridge Road and have had to phone the campsite on 

several occasions over the years when loud music or Tanoy system announcements make our lives 

unbearable. We put up with the general noise of hundreds of people milling around their caravans and 

the children running around screaming every day plus all the maintenance of constant mowing and 

tree maintenance.  We also have The Ship Inn and The Old spice Ship close by who have 

entertainment licences too.   

 

All in all, we would like less noise rather than more! 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

121.  

 

Dear Sir or Madam 

 

I wish to lodge my objection to the application by Haven Caravan Park, Preston,  Weymouth for a 

license for  outdoor alcohol,  outdoor  stage for music, events, recorded and live music, cinema, 

dance and performances. 

 

The Application is for 7 days a week including Sunday and until 11pm at night. 

 

The noise that this will create will be heard in my garden and will  seriously  infringe on  the enjoyment 

of my property,  Preston is a residential area and as such this kind of loud outdoor entertainment is 

Page 109



not welcome or expected.  My property borders Preston Road so the speakers will carry sound 

clearly  into  my garden. 

I expect to be able to sit in my garden and hear bird song not loud recorded/ live music or cinema.  On 

Sundays I expect to hear church bells not loud music destroying the peace.   

 

The Haven site does not need this facility.  They have indoor halls etc to facilitate loud  music 

/theatre/performance/alcohol consumption  etc etc.  There is no need for this to be outside and for 

speakers etc to be used which will carry the sound into my garden.  The application covers the use of 

live music – does this mean they envisage Pop Concerts being held there?  This is a residential area 

and must be protected as such. 

 

Preston is a residential area and  as a resident I have the right to enjoyment of my property without 

the intrusion of loud music from early in the morning until 11pm at night  from before Easter until 

October,                        7 days a week. 

My property should not be made to feel as if it is within an amusement park with constant loud music 

or sound.  I do not want to sit in my garden and listen to  loud music or outdoor cinema.  If this 

application  is passed it could lead to loss of value in my property.  Who will want to buy a property 

near to and subjected to this loud noise?  

 

Holiday makers can enjoy the facilities indoors at Haven for their holiday stay without my property 

being subjected to this loud music/performance and noise from before Easter until October each 

year.  There is no need for an outdoor facility. 

 

In other areas of the country where Caravan Parks have outdoor music/stages etc  this has  led to 

lengthy, rigorous  and vociferous objections from local residents – eg Butlins at Minehead. 

 

This application must be  very  firmly rejected  and this residential area protected. 

 

 

122. 
 
 Dear Sir 
I understand that the above holiday park in Preston is intending to play loud live and recorded music 
in the open air 7 days a week during the summer months.  
That part of Weymouth is also a highly populated residential area and this sort of noise pollution 
would cause the people living there a  considerable nuisance especially as most people are outside 
during the summer enjoying their gardens.  
You wouldn’t expect that sort of intrusion 7 days a week on the beaches nearby so this park should 
respect this and stop their plans.  

Page 110



Other residents of surrounding villages also use the walks and beaches in Weymouth and relish a 
county which usually doesn’t succumb to constant loud music in public places It is also apparent that 
this has been little publicised not allowing any discussion on the matter.  
Yours sincerely 

 

 

123.  

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

We wish to object to the approval of the Premise Licence for the stage and an outdoor bar at 

Weymouth Bay Holiday Park, Haven, on the grounds of public nuisance, danger of harm to children, 

and an increase in crime and disorder. 

 

Public nuisance 

 

The proposed stage is approximately 130 metres from our house, with the closest house in our road 

being approximately 70 metres from it. From past events they have had on the same site, we have 

experienced very loud singing and comperes using a PA system. On one occasion in 2018 we 

recorded this warbling background noise which I will try and attach to this email. 

 

Our neighbourhood is made up of many elderly residents who are home a lot, and an increasing 

number of working age people now work from home most of the time. In our road alone we also have 

at least 2 dozen children whose homework and bedtimes will be affected by the daily length and 

frequency of the proposed hours of entertainment. We do not want to have to close our windows 

permanently on hot summer days (and nights) to block out the background noise from singing, music, 

loud films and the PA system on the stage. The proposed stage may point away from us, but the wind 

direction plays a huge part in the amount of music and general noise we can hear. You only have to 

listen to the music from the Spice Ship Pub to know how far that travels. Luckily they are restricted 

with regards to the number of live music events they can have per year. If Haven’s request is 

approved, I would suggest similar restrictions are put on the frequency of live music events they are 

allowed per year. Even with the promise that there won’t be any bands and it will only be acoustic, the 

noise from recorded music playing, or a PA system and singers, are still a nuisance, especially with 

the frequency requested in the application. 

 

Regarding the promise that Weymouth Bay Holiday Park, Haven, will log all complaints and work with 

residents, their actions to date leave us very sceptical. Apparently, a few neighbours who can see 

caravans at the end of their garden were recently invited to a meeting. Had the invitation been 

extended to all who could hear the caravan park, rather than a few who can see it, they would have 

had more than 2 people turn up. Myself and my husband would have definitely attended, along with 

numerous others. In “the prevention of crime and disorder” section of the application, the applicant 

mentions keeping a “noise incident log” and giving local residents a contact telephone number and 

email address for “local nearby residents”. Who do Haven consider local and nearby if they only invite 

handful of residents who are within sight of a caravan to a meeting? How are we supposed to believe 

anything will be logged and that anyone complaining will be treated with respect when some residents 

have complained to Weymouth Bay about the music near their entrance, only to have the phone hung 

up on them? 

 

Referring to the specifics of Haven’s Application for a Premises Licence for the Outdoor Stage and 

Container Bar Area, we note that the date of their application is listed as 26/05/2022. There was 

Page 111



already an Environmental Health Consultation Response by Jane Williams, Team Leader, 

Environmental Protection (West) dated 24/03/2022 in response to the original Planning Application for 

the new Stage, Bar and activities. This states that there should be “recommended conditions and [/] or 

modifications”, and the findings she has listed from talking to the representatives on the park, are 

vastly different to what has been requested in the Premises Licence Application submitted 2 months 

later. In addition to the hours applied for being longer and more frequent than what was told to Jane 

Williams, the application also fails to take into account any of the recommendations she has made. 

They have been given an inch and taken a mile. This does not fill us with confidence in Haven’s future 

cooperation with residents or adherence to any rules or restrictions imposed on them. 

 

At the moment, aside from a little background noise from the main road, the only regular sound all day 

are the birds singing. To permit the use of the Outdoor Stage and Container Bar Area for the hours 

that have been applied for, would ruin the tranquil environment the inhabitants of Preston live in. Most 

residents live here because of this tranquillity. It would be a great shame not to be able to hear the 

birds singing because of the constant background noise, 7 days a week, 11am until 11pm. 

 

Danger of harm to children 

 

Aside from the risk that the holiday makers might feel it is appropriate to leave their children in the 

caravans to sleep while they go to the bar and stage to have a drink and listen to music, there is also 

the health and wellbeing of local resident children to consider. How will they be able to get to sleep, or 

concentrate on homework while there is constant background noise? 11pm, or even 9pm is too late 

within a residential area, not even just for the houses, but the caravans too, especially 7 days per 

week.  

 

Crime and disorder 

 

The sale of alcohol from 11am until 11pm in the middle of a residential park and children’s play area 

is concerning. At the moment the consumption of alcohol at the Weymouth Bay site is spread 

throughout the park in individual caravans, or at the central indoor entertainment area. There is a 

reason the residents of the Preston area of Weymouth choose to live here rather than in town. The 

proposed stage and bar area is situated near a Public Right of Way. In “The prevention of crime and 

disorder” box, the applicant only really mentions keeping a log of refusal to serve alcohol to people. 

How do Haven intend to restrict this area to residents of the park and prevent people from bringing 

excessive amounts of their own alcohol to sit there all day? Excessive alcohol consumption increases 

noise and antisocial behaviour. It would be akin to the street having a party or a neighbour having a 

BBQ with hundreds of guests, all day every day. 

 

Context 

 

We have a 7-year-old child, and we work from home the majority of the time. We live in a part of 

Fisherbridge Road where you wouldn’t know you were surrounded by caravans because the other 

houses block the view of them. has lived here for 30 years, and anyone arguing that the 

caravan site was here before the houses were, needs to check the stages of expansion that the 

caravan park has gone through, and the application timeline for additions such as this. Caravan parks 

can be peaceful and family friendly. We hope this is not the start of degradation from a peaceful family 

holiday park to an Ibiza staycation where the clientele changes. We live on a fabulous part of the 

Dorset Jurassic Coast with a town rich in history. We have an underutilised 9 screen cinema, and the 

streets are populated with an extraordinary number of pubs, clubs and bars, more than most towns. 

Surely an extra bar and stage on site would be detrimental to the local economy rather than any 

benefit? 

 

In conclusion, we don’t want to be killjoys, and we appreciate the desire for holiday makers to sit back 

and relax with a drink at the end of the day while the kids play. What we don’t appreciate is the 

expanse of time the Premises Licence Application lists for activities involving a stage and PA system. 

Nevermind that it will be vocalists and acoustic sets, I presume they will still have microphones! We’d 

Page 112



probably prefer an occasional band, than day in day out vocalists. That sound does not travel 

favourably, as my video recording from 2018 shows. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

124.  

 

Dear Sirs 

 

I am contacting you by email to express my strenuous objection to the proposal for outdoor music and 

events with alcohol. 

 

In effect, Haven Leisure Ltd as the owner/applicant is seeking to change materially and detrimentally 

the nature of the Weymouth Bay park from a quiet caravan site to an outside music venue in a 

residential area. 

 

After examining the application, reasons for my objection include the following: 

 

1) The availability of "events" 7 days a week from 11 o'clock in the morning to 11 o'clock at night is 

outrageous - even the Glastonbury festival is limited annually to a long weekend! 

 

2) The addition of alcohol to outside events would undoubtedly increase shouting and general 

disturbance as well as other anti-social behaviour. 

 

3) Existing entertainment and drinking facilities are widely available in Weymouth so more provision is 

unnecessary and would only undermine current businesses. 

 

4) For anyone unfamiliar with the area, the assertion that the sound would be reduced because the 

stage should be "orientated away from residential areas" is highly questionable.  Even a brief 

examination of a local map clearly shows the substantial amount of residential housing around the 

site.  (Sound travels and spreads as a wave so it is not possible to control it like a pack of beer cans.) 

 

5) The excessive and persistent noise generated would no doubt be at least a substantial nuisance 

but far more likely extremely injurious to mental health.  No acoustic report or evidence from the 

Environmental Health Department seems to have been submitted or made publicly available. 

Page 113



 

6) My home is, metaphorically, only a stone's throw from the holiday park but I have not received any 

information at all from the applicant.  My belief is that a company such as National Grid, which has 

been replacing pylons in the Winterbourne Abbas area and explaining its activities, would have 

meaningfully engaged with the local community to try and justify the proposal or consider 

alternative plans.  For instance, why not construct a hall which would not only be far less intrusive but 

could be properly soundproofed and suitable for use in all weather conditions?  Incidentally, at a time 

when  "ESG" (Environmental, Social and Governance aspects) rather than just maximising profits are 

becoming increasingly important, it is a moot point how this scheme could be evaluated. 

  

7) The local County Councillors, Messrs O'Leary and Ferrari, who are most familiar with the situation, 

are opposed to the application, together with numerous residents.  Furthermore, I am not aware of 

any neighbours in favour of the scheme.  In addition, the proposal has already been examined and 

declined by the relevant Weymouth Town Council committee. 

 

8) Weymouth already has a reputation as a down-market resort with problems of crime and anti-social 

behaviour.  

 

I am quite happy to elaborate on any of these points, if required. 

 

In conclusion, after careful consideration, the proposal is overwhelmingly inappropriate and should be 

rejected accordingly. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

125. 

 

 To:    The Licencing Committee Members of Dorset Council 

 

Re:    Application for a Premises Licence by Haven Leisure Limited for Haven Outdoor Stage and 

Container Bar Area. 

 

I have lived at Preston for 20 years and I am a registered voter. I object to this licence application on 

the grounds that it will create a public nuisance. Preston is a mixed residential area in which the 

residents exercise care and responsibility for the space in which we all live. 

 

Page 114



I live 400 metres from and at an elevation of 25 metres above the application premises. The local 

area in which I live and in which the application premises are located, constitute a natural 

amphitheatre; sounds emanating from the Haven camp are clearly audible across a wide area of 

residential housing in Preston. On summer days when outside in the garden of my home, I am 

currently plagued by the noise of music, comperes and participants in events hosted by Haven. From 

my home I can clearly hear music, vocals, clearly articulated speech, comperes lead and responses, 

laughing and cheering from both adults and children. These disturbances, currently and fortunately 

relatively few throughout the main holiday season, often continue for several hours at a time 

throughout the day and evening. Due to their relative infrequency to date, these current events may 

not give reasonable grounds for objection; however, this application is of a different order; what the 

applicants are requesting is to licence such disturbances for up to 12 hours per day, seven days per 

week for 8 months of the year; which will potentially create an intolerable intrusion into the quiet 

enjoyment of their properties for a large number of the residents of Preston.  

 

Haven Leisure Limited’s application seeks permission to carry out activities which are grossly 

inconsiderate and unneighbourly. As a business operating in close proximity to a quiet residential 

area, the applicants appear not to understand or care about the impact of their activities on residents; 

and for which reason this application should be refused. 

 

 

 

126.  
 
We strongly object to the recent license application by Haven Holiday Park for outdoor music, and 
events including the sale of alcohol with varying times. 
 
Regards 

 

 

127.                         

Page 115



Wednesday 22 June  

 

2022 0910 hrs 

                                                                                                                         

 

 

To  licensing@dorsetcouncil.com 

 

Dear Sir 

     I am writing to you with great concern over the stated application, and request it is refused. 

 

I am 83 years of age and my wife is 77, we have lived in Fisherbridge Road for 9 years, we have 

tolerated a certain amount of noise and disruption 

from the Holiday camps that surround us, but this application  is so thoughtless, and unbelievable. 

 

A stage for films (eg Football matches), and music ,and the sale of alcohol, from 1100 hours to 2300 

hours is madness ,so close to a residential  area ,also a public foot path runs  near to the stage/bar, 

so what about groups of non campers buying alcohol and adding vocals to the noise 

 

I have worked in electronics all my working life, sound is a wild thing and cannot be contained it 

scatters all over the place ,more so in the open. 

 

This application should be refused on the basis of Public nuisance and detrimental to the community 

of Preston 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

128. 

 

 Dear councillors 

Page 116

mailto:licensing@dorsetcouncil.com


                                I am against the issue of a licence for outdoor music at weymouth bay holiday 

park.  

I am retired and do not want to listen to music coming from weymouth bay holiday park all day every 

day. please let us have some peace and quiet.  

 

                                                Yours sincerely 

                                               

 

 

129. 

 

 Re Haven outdoor music and alcohol license application.  

 

This holiday park is centrally positioned in Preston, immediately adjacent to residential areas which 

are already subject to a lot of noise pollution from increasing traffic and numbers of visitors.  

Any noise on Haven Holiday Park can be heard all over Preston, both in residential areas and other 

holiday parks and campsites, due to its central location, the lie of the land and prevailing winds. It is 

not sensible to risk increasing noise in this area for residents or for visitors to other campsites and 

holiday accomodation. 

 

I therefore object strongly to granting this license. 

 

130. 
 
 Dear Sir / Madam 
 
I would like to voice my opinion about the above application. 
 
I am very disappointed that Haven Leisure Limited (the Applicant) failed to post the requisite notices 
about this application until last Thursday (16th June). I must presume this to be an oversight rather 
than something underhand, but an inevitable consequence of this has been a loss of trust in the 
Applicant. 
 
The proposed new facilities will shatter the peace and quiet of the local area which has been enjoyed 
by residents for decades, indeed hundreds of years. It is well understood that when one of the local 

Page 117



pubs puts on a special event the sound travels extremely well and disturbs the whole area. However, 
it is tolerable because such events are very infrequent and residents can attend the events if they 
want to. 
 
I am also disappointed to see that the Applicant did not offer anything to the local community in 
exchange, or in compensation for what is likely to be a significant imposition. 
 
I therefore wish to object to the above application in the strongest possible terms. 
 
Kind regards 

 

131.  

 

Representation AGAINST Haven Leisure Ltd request for the grant of a Premises Licence for an 

outdoor stage and container bar area at Weymouth Bay Holiday Park, Preston, DT3 6BQ 

I object to the granting of this licence for the following 5 reasons: 

  

1.    The prevention of a public nuisance – level of and consistent nature of noise  

  

-       I accept tourism can bring some noise and inconvenience. 

-       I want Weymouth and its tourism to thrive. 

-       I accept the sometimes noisy Weymouth Bay caravan guests just beyond the boundary of 

my garden enjoying their holiday.  I accept the pounding noise of The Spice Ship music 

festivals.  But these are ad hoc disturbances.   

-       All day, 7 days a week continuous noise from an outdoor entertainment and bar area is 

surely unacceptable.  

  

-       This Haven Licence request is a considerable and marked change from the current way the 

park operates and the type of activity on offer.  Businesses need to be able to develop but not at 

all costs. 

-       Following the debate at the Weymouth Town Council meeting I attended on 14th June 2022 

I worry that the strategic need for this marked change with considerable and consistent noise 

impact is not being challenged.   

-       Haven says the new licensable activities are needed to secure/boost both occupancy and 

jobs which all sounds very positive for Weymouth but shouldn’t Haven have to prove this need 

for it to form a valid part of the debate? 

-       What loss of occupancy will there be if this change is not implemented?  Could occupancy 

actually fall if guests and Weymouth Bay Holiday Park residents don’t like the noise? What extra 

jobs will this change bring? What jobs will be lost if this change doesn’t happen? What other 

strategic options could be implemented that will achieve the same business aims without this 

level of public nuisance?  

-       I was told by Haven at the meeting I was invited to on the 25th May 2022 that guests and 

residents of Weymouth Bay Holiday Park had requested more activities.  But if the activities 

listed in this proposed licence application are a top down Haven nationwide policy being rolled 

out across all their UK parks (which I understand to be the case) then to suggest that the outdoor 

bar and stage area is being implemented in response to local guest feedback does not appear 

genuine.   

Page 118



o   I have had a look at Tripadvisor and can’t see any reviews that mention a lack of 

children’s activities.  If children’s activities are mentioned people seem very happy with 

the type and amount.  Interestingly someone mentions negatively the noise of the top bar 

and outdoor play area and another holiday maker mentions positively that the park is 

great for green play space, it’s rural and relaxing and it has its own green playing field.  

-       Surely more tailored changes to the Weymouth Haven offering rather than a top down 

blanket national Haven policy would be better.  Changes that respond directly to local guest 

feedback, changes that would differentiate the Weymouth site from other Haven sites so as to 

maximise Weymouth tourists.  And importantly changes with lower associated noise pollution 

that would better suit a site that is surrounded closely by caravans and a holiday park with so 

many close neighbours. 

-       Or is any change needed at all?  Do holidaymakers love the more natural quieter 

experience Haven Weymouth Bay can offer? 

o   On the Haven website it states they ‘love green natural space and fresh, clean 

air.  That’s why we’re increasingly re-landscaping our parks with more open grassy areas 

and trees’ Weymouth Haven appears to be using its only recreational green space for 

these new activities.  

  

      With regards to the type and level of noise:  

-       I feel Haven are using the terms ‘family entertainment’ and ‘family movies’ in a way that 

suggests these types of entertainment won’t disturb anyone and are low key and quiet. There is 

no natural correlation between family friendly and quiet entertainment.  The two are not 

congruent and the suggestion of such is misleading.  The intention may well be an agenda of 

activities planned with families in mind but this does not mean the type of activity will be naturally 

quiet.  They will not be using the stage facility to only sing quiet lullabies.  

-       Importantly the licence application does not use the word ‘family’ at all. 

-       The Environmental Health consultation response to the planning application says Haven 

have stated there is no intention for bands to be playing as if that statement covers off the only 

type of noisy entertainment. 

-       Live vocalists with backing tracks are of course also a big noise concern and live music acts 

are not the only noise generating activity that will be on the stage. Equally noisy will be the 

suggested entertainers, soundtracks of movies, dance acts, exuberant holiday reps, recorded 

music and plays. 

-       The licence application also requests live acoustic sets which could mean a band and you 

can get very loud acoustic bands/sets.   

-       Haven have mentioned sound limiters and directional speakers:   

o   It’s important to note you can’t automatically reduce the noise level of an acoustic act. 

A Jazz acoustic act for example would not necessarily go through a sound system, the 

sound could be naturally loud without any electronic amplification and could only be 

‘turned’ down by asking musicians to play quieter. Acoustic musicians or singers may 

also choose to use individual amps rather than linking to the sound system. 

o   Any non-amplified sound cannot be ‘directed’ and amplified sound can only be 

directed to a certain extent and will certainly carry with any wind. 

o   Spectator noise will not go through any PA system and can’t be turned down or 

channelled in a certain direction! 

  

-       There is a fog of inconsistent detail surrounding what the stage will be used for and 

therefore the type and level of noise.  There are inconsistencies between the proposed 

licensable activities stated to Environmental Health, those mentioned at the Haven residents 

meeting, those mentioned by Haven at the Weymouth Council meeting and those requested in 

the licence application.   

-       Given the licence application and it’s wording is a standard nationwide Haven application 

(as Haven stated at the Council meeting) and the outdoor bar and stage area I believe is a 

standard nationwide strategy which they have already implemented at other Haven parks then 

Haven must surely have been very clear from the outset of the planning application as to what 

Page 119



the stage was going to be used for. So why the lack of consistency. It feels concerning and 

disingenuous. 

o   The Environmental Health report lists ‘family entertainment in 45 minute sessions 

such artists as puppetry, magician, family movies and character meet and greets’ plus 

‘on rare occasions the stage might be used for movies under the stars’.  At both the 

residents meeting and the Council meeting, Haven’s focus was on live music, singers 

with backing tracks and evening films (and also events were mentioned at the residents 

meeting). The licence introduces further uses and ignores others mentioned 

previously.  It requests plays, recorded music, performance of dance and entertainment 

of a like kind as well as live music and the ability to show films every evening.  The 

Licence request doesn’t mention the word family at all. 

  

-       Importantly, the wording on the licence request is worryingly broad.  It’s very carte 

blanche.  For example ‘live vocalists and acoustic sets' has a very wide interpretation and the 

licence even uses the words ‘of a like kind’. Also as it does not mention the word family the 

licence could easily be used to justify adult focused entertainment.   

  

  

2.    The prevention of a public nuisance and the prevention of crime and disorder – 

concern over the impact of Haven’s actions to date and their ongoing ability to be a 

responsible operator 

  

-       I feel Haven has fallen very short on what they should have done as a responsible business 

to ensure their plans do not create a public nuisance.  

-       And as Haven have not shown themselves to be a considerate neighbour with genuine 

concern for their impact on local residents this does not bode well for Haven managing this new 

entertainment in a way that shows regard for public nuisance impact or crime and disorder 

issues.  

-       I feel inconsiderate business behaviour should not be rewarded. 

-       Haven has not cared to get their neighbours on board. They have not properly and 

genuinely involved us in the process in order to listen, compromise, potentially modify plans and 

gain some sort of buy-in (see important detail below).  

-       They have also ignored in their licence application the recommended modifications of West 

Dorset Environmental Health in terms of stage and bar opening hours and movie frequency and 

times (although I strongly feel these recommendations do not go anywhere near far enough to 

prevent a public nuisance and the report also does not mention the issue of the bar licence 

request being for 12 hours a day, 7 days a week all year round).  

  

o   I had a Haven letter through my door dated 20th May 2022, which I think was 

delivered on the 21st May (the Saturday) inviting me to a meeting on Wednesday 25th 

May (potentially just 2 days notice if you were away for the weekend) where I could find 

out more about their licensing plans.  In the letter Haven states that ‘it’s incredibly 

important to all of us here at the park to work closely and respectfully with you as our 

neighbours’.  Only myself and another neighbour turned up at the meeting which I 

thought was odd.  Later I discovered only a handful of my neighbours knew about it and 

those that did couldn’t make it because of the short notice and the time of day. 

o   At the Council meeting there was a reference to the Haven legal team advising only 

15 houses needed to be informed of the ‘residents’ meeting.  Also a local Councillor had 

not been invited so could not represent and give feedback to those who were busy, or 

too old to get there etc.  It felt like a tick box exercise. 

o   At this meeting on 25th May Haven said they were working closely with Environmental 

Health and taking on board their advice but the licence application shows this is not the 

case. When Haven were asked about this at the Council meeting they said that the 

Environmental Health report was only recommendation and they had just submitted the 

same standard Haven license they had submitted across the country.  It appears that 

this is a top down policy that Haven want implemented across the country irrespective of 

individual local concern.  

Page 120



o   Furthermore if the Haven licence request wording is standard national Haven wording 

then surely this was set in stone before the residents meeting which according to the 

letter was important so that neighbours could ‘share any thoughts you would like us to 

take into account’ 

o   Additionally, if the licence consultation period is 28 days and finishes on 23rd June, 

this would mean the licence application was received from Haven by the Council on the 

26th May, the day after the residents meeting where only 2 people attended.  Did Haven 

not want to get better input from residents before submitting the application?  Have 

another meeting and invite more than 15 houses?  Offer a more suitable time for people 

with work and family commitments?  (the meeting was set for 6.00pm). Maybe a whole 

drop in day?  And a date with more notice? 

o   People need time to think and process such a big change and then need the 

opportunity to raise concerns.   

o   Sadly Haven also didn’t engage residents at all at the planning stage, they had 

months to do so, but managed to keep the planning application under the radar until the 

window of opportunity for residents to comment had closed.  Haven put up the statutory 

minimum notices.  Whilst the end of my garden forms the boundary with the caravan 

park and my property is approximately 100m from the proposed site of the stage and 

bar, my house is quite a way from the holiday park gates so I did not see any of the 

planning notices and nor did any of my neighbours.  

o   Haven said the meeting on the 25th May had been called voluntarily out of 

neighbourly concern to discuss the licence application but at this meeting they had no 

coherent answer to explain why they hadn’t had the same voluntary neighbourly concern 

around the planning application.  They said they couldn’t be responsible for the actions 

of Dorset Council but they are very much responsible for their own actions.  

  

-      Haven's letter regarding the licensing residents meeting states that ‘it’s incredibly important 

to all of us here at the park to work closely and respectfully with you as our neighbours’ Given 

their approach to the planning and this licence process that statement doesn’t seem genuine. 

-       I don’t believe there was ever any intention to listen, debate or modify their licence request 

as a result of local resident or Environmental Health concern. 

  

  

  

3.    The prevention of a public nuisance and the prevention of crime and disorder – 

noise and anti-social behaviour from guests and visitors to the bar area 

  

-       The site of the proposed bar and stage forms part of a public right of way.  The Licence 

application requests bar sale and supply of alcohol for on and off site consumption, that the 

outdoor bar can operate 12 hours a day 11 to 11, 7 days a week, all year round and the site will 

be open midnight to midnight, 24 hours, 7 days a week all year round as the site is an open field 

with public rights of way. 

-       I’m concerned about public nuisance due to people who are not staying at the park going to 

drink and their noisy and disruptive anti-social behaviour when they leave the site and associated 

increased risk of crime and disorder. Haven said at the Council meeting they were happy to 

serve people not staying at the park. 

-       Visitors could stay onsite consuming alcohol after the bar closes and leave the site in the 

early hours of the morning.   

-       I also have a concern that this new proposed bar and stage facility will alter the type of 

holiday maker attracted.  A 12 hour a day bar and noise is not going to attract customers who 

want a peaceful holiday (the proposed site of the stage and bar is surrounded closely by many 

caravans). I would think a lot of holidaymakers come to Haven Weymouth Bay and the Bowleaze 

end of the bay for a quieter holiday experience where they can appreciate the natural beauty of 

the surroundings, appreciate the quieter beaches, do watersports, access the south west coast 

path etc, but can also link easily into all the wider entertainment options Weymouth has to offer if 

they wish.   

Page 121



-       Haven said at the Council meeting that their focus is being a family friendly site. A 12 hour a 

day, all year round, outdoor bar open till 11pm that forms part of the children’s entertainment 

area doesn’t seem to fit with this vision.   

  

  

4.    Prevention of a public nuisance – impact on the natural environment 

  

-       The potential environmental damage is concerning.  

-       At the Council meeting when asked about their sustainability policies, Haven was not 

informed enough regarding the company’s sustainability agenda to share this agenda at the 

meeting which was disappointing.  This lack of sustainability awareness does not bode well for 

the new activities being operated with sustainability in mind which is worrying when they are 

operating in an environmentally sensitive location. 

-       At the Haven residents meeting Haven said they would be using plastic cups at certain 

events.  As there are various 100% compostable plant based cup options on the market, I am 

dismayed that a company that operates in beautiful natural areas next to the sea is not taking a 

more sustainable approach. 

-       Haven also stated that polycarbonate cups will be used at other times.  The following is my 

understanding of the issues with using polycarbonate:   

o   This material is not naturally biodegradable and is therefore not without harm to the 

environment.   

o   Polycarbonate is a single use plastic if the cups are disposed of after use. People 

may not recycle or reuse them or even bin them and instead discard them into the 

surrounding ecosystem.  

o   I believe there is an additive that can be added at manufacture that assists 

biodegradability but the cups will still biodegrade into small plastic oil based fragments 

(polycarbonate is made from oil) that will infiltrate into the local ecosystem including the 

local waters.   

o   There is also a potential BPA leaching concern once they start to biodegrade. 

-       There is of course also the huge issue of the level of general rubbish generated by an 

outside bar and entertainment area which could be blown into the local ecosystem including the 

sea. 

  

     5. Protection of children from harm 

  

-       I strongly feel you shouldn’t have a 12 hour a day, 7 days a week, all year round  licensed 

bar as part of a children’s entertainment area.  The new attractions such as mini aerial adventure 

and jump tower mentioned in the planning application are apparently designed specifically for 

children and the siting of the bar and stage will sit alongside these activities in what Haven calls a 

family area. 

  

 

 

132.  
 
Dears Sirs 
     We wish to lodge an objection to the proposed licensing request for the outdoor container on 
Weymouth Bay Park and outside stage.  

Page 122



    The reasons for the objection are as follows.   
    There are young families who back on to that field, The area in question.  
    Weymouth Bay are requesting a license to serve alcohol from 11am-9pm in an open field in full 
view of vulnerable young children/teenagers.  
    It is not acceptable for children to see people drinking all day/evening. What are we/ What is it 
we’re teaching these young people that is ok to drink alcohol all the time. At least in a Pub/Bar it’s 
indoors and out of site to youngsters.  
    Secondly Where are the people going to go to the toilet to relieve themselves?  In the bushes 
behind our vans??  As I don’t see any PortaToilets on the site plan.  
    Thirdly. No one (The Manager in Particular) has considered the noise problem! The disagreements 
and scuffles/fights fuelled by alcohol that may break out!   Are security going to be on site in this area 
constantly from 11am-9pm?   Also the litter aspect and Possible broken glass In the grass!!   
    As we said previously Young families Flank the park in front of where the outside stage and bar are 
to be sited. How on earth are these you children supposed to be able to sleep in the evening? When 
there is loud music playing until 11PM. As everyone knows Noise travels louder in the open air and at 
night than when enclosed and contained inside!!  Just as it does at music festivals!!! 
    It is totally thoughtless of the park Manager to be requesting this in this part of Haven Holiday Park. 
Especially when there is an adequate field at the back of the park. Well away from the vans. This is 
wasteland at the moment but could easily be used for the requested venue. It Would be IDEAL!!! 
    WE as Owners were not consulted previously on our views to the proposed Plans for this field. We 
feel we should have been asked our opinion in this matter when we pay an EXORBITANT amount of 
money in SITE FEES each year!!  
      Also although it’s not your department I’m sure.   He’s ripped out and removed the swings etc. in 
the childrens play park. Where ?  I wonder does he intend to put them?  Round with the Football 
Goals in the dog walking area ? so the children invariably end up with ‘dog poo’on their shoes!?      
This was always supposed to be a conservation area and was previously known as The David 
Bellamy Conservation Area!     
     Thank you for your patience and for reading this Email. PLEASE give it your upmost thought and 
consideration before allowing this license application to go ahead.   
    With Regards  
        
          
               
 

 

133. 

 

 In regards to the above licence application I would like to make it known that I strongly object to the 

application. 

Living nearby I already suffer considerably from the noise generated by the Haven facility and object 

to the additional noise and behavioural problems that would be generated, by granting licenses for 

outdoor music events, and events including the outdoor sale of alcohol at varying times. 

 

 

134. 

 

 Objection to application by Haven Weymouth Bay to outdoor music, films and bar every day 

Page 123



 

As a Preston resident, have concerns regarding this, especially the noise aspect, as this will affect 

locals the most, particularly those living close by.  

 

The word ‘only’, in the description on the application of when the events will take place, belittles the 

fact that in reality this would mean for more than 6/7 months local residents may be affected by noise 

pollution from the site every day, unless presumably raining 

 

As a former van owner for years at Weymouth Bay I would also have concerns about the sale of 

alcohol outside until late and how safety, in its many aspects, could be an issue.   

 

Objections are therefore on 

• the prevention of crime and disorder (alcohol licence) 

• the prevention of a public nuisance (nuisance noise to residents) 

• public safety (alcohol licence) 

• protection of children from harm (alcohol licence) 

 

Sale of alcohol 

 

Outdoor drinking at the bar until late, together with late night drinking in the Live Lounge if it remains 

open, and the cafe bar, increases risks of safety issues, rowdiness, and anti social behaviour 

throughout the site as a whole. 

It could potentially become a problem with groups of people hanging round the bar/stage area 

drinking after the official closing times, causing distress to other guests, who may not wish to have 

their evenings disturbed. 

 

How can Haven stop anyone bringing in their own alcoholic drinks in cans or bottles to an open 

outdoor area unless a security fence is installed ? 

 

Difficult to see from the map, but looks like the area in question is the old sports field, with the 

childrens playground and mini golf adjacent ?   

If so, are bars serving alcohol until 11 pm, adjacent to play areas, where many parents in the past 

have let their kids go on their own unsupervised, a safe and responsible idea?   

Too many dark corners for a start !  this area in general was always poorly lit. 

 

Security guards seem to change every year.  To be fair, some security, where the guards have had a 

definite presence both in build and attitude has been good, but others have noticeably walked away 

from trouble or been far too slow to arrive. 

Often there’s not enough of them. 

 

Page 124



At certain times, notably around Easter, large groups of people   descended on the park, resulting in 

drunken and anti social behaviour and vans trashed.  How would this be dealt with in the proposed 

area as well as the complex and accommodation at the same time? 

 

Hopefully anti social behaviour issues would be contained ‘on site’ rather than affect the 

village.  Obviously every time the police are called it takes them away from any incidents in town. 

 

Noise 

 

We know from occasional events held at the Spice Ship pub in Preston, near to Weymouth Bay 

holiday park, that the noise carries such a long way in this village, and can be heard clearly even 

almost a mile away. These are occasional events so acceptable to most locals. 

 

Residents living close by the site have also endured noise in the past from Weymouth Bay, but again 

this is occasional.  The proposed venture is a whole new ball game ! 

 

If how we are interpreting the application is correct, residents may have to put up with noise from 

Weymouth Bay drifting across a residential area EVERY day from 11 am to 9 pm for months, (music 

noise) and 11 pm (any other outdoor noise either from behaviour/entertainment) 

This would be unacceptable, and not neighbour friendly. 

 

The attraction from Haven’s point of view, is it keeps visitors on site throughout the day 

spending,  rather than going into town, and it gets people outdoors rather than stuck inside. Not good 

for the town businesses though. 

 

Not against it being held 2-3 times a week in the summer, (without the bar serving alcohol for reasons 

stated), providing it was spot checked by Dorset council, and the noise limiter tested for effectiveness 

in various residential areas of the village, but possibly every day for months between 11 am and 

9pm/11pm would be much too intrusive, and unfair on residents. 

 

Not only does the effect of noise build up over time to become incredibly annoying, increase stress 

levels and possibly eventually affect wellbeing of local residents as the weeks go by, but will spoil 

Preston residents’ enjoyment of their own gardens and homes, as most will also have windows open, 

especially during the warmer months.  

 

Those living closer to the site will be even more affected, shift workers, remote workers, anyone 

autistic with noise sensitivity, families with young children needing to get them to sleep, and school 

the next day, anyone in fact hoping to enjoy their personal space.   

After work and at weekends, people expect to be able to relax and enjoy their gardens without 

constant noise possibly every day from microphones and sound systems, and even just an annoying 

non stop hum or drone can get on your nerves!    

  

Page 125



We have all had a lot to put up with over the last couple of years, probably with more to come, and 

our gardens have become our sanctuary. 

 

Couple of concerns other than the above  

 

 I notice there is a clause saying any neighbourhood complaints will be logged, but how do we really 

trust that will be the case ?   

Will residents be able to complain directly to the licensing committee so we can ensure complaints of 

noise or behaviour are received by yourselves? 

 

In section A, notice the entertainment is “not limited to film nights and childrens entertainment “  so 

does that give them carte blanche to do whatever else they like?  The proposed area is surrounded 

by vans which are like ovens in warm weather and windows will have to be open, so any 

entertainment would have to be suitable for all 

 

Finally 

 

Weymouth Bay management it would seem only contacted immediate neighbours very late on of their 

proposals, and many of us living in the Preston area were unaware and only found out on social 

media, but many in the area will still be unaware of these proposals.   

 

This is not how a responsible company wanting to engage with its neighbours should act.  It should be 

reassuring and talking over proposals with them so that the company know exactly what locals are 

worried about.  

 

Many of us have lots of questions but no opportunity for answers!  

 

No one has had chance to discuss anything with them.   

This appears to have been done ‘on the quiet’. Publicised meetings could have been held in the 

village hall, between the company and residents, to respond to concerns, and discuss their plans but 

as far as aware, none have.   

All this does is antagonise and create a them and us situation.   

 

Respect for Preston residents quality of life is paramount, and don’t think this application, or 

how it’s been carried out, shows enough concern or empathy for residents.   

 

 

 

 

Page 126



 

 

135.  
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
I wish to raise an objection to the licence application made by Haven Leisure for the Weymouth Bay 
caravan park.  
 
The proposed outdoor entertainment area and licensed bar will create a public nuisance to the 
surrounding residential area, which includes my house.  
 
We have experienced high noise levels from previous outdoor events at the location proposed, 
however these were occasional one-off daytime events. Regular evening entertainment for large 
gatherings of alcohol-consuming holidaymakers will create a significant disturbance and negatively 
affect the use our garden, resulting in a loss of amenity. 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 

 

136.  
 
Dear Sir, 
We would like to oppose the application by Haven for an outdoor stage and bar. 
 
We are residents of Halstock Close and our property is located near the side entrance to the 
campsite. We feel, we are going to experience even more noise from people circulating and from the 
events they will be holding. The bar may close at 11 pm but we are sure that the drinking will continue 
afterwards and in the summer when we have to have the window open, we will be disturbed by the 
loud music and people who will undoubtedly be under the influence of alcohol making a lot of noise. 
 
We have lived in our property for over 27 years and we have had incidences with teenagers drinking 
in the vicinity of the close, which are dealt with by security when fellow residents have contacted 
them. 
 
Both my wife and I are still in full time employment, we have to get up early in the morning. My wife 
who works for the NHS works regularly on Sundays, as the plans are for SEVEN days a week, when 
are going to have an undisturbed night? 
We also feel they being very inconsiderate to anybody living in the area as they are only interested in 
making as much money as possible and not worried about noise and light pollution. 
 
Weymouth has so many wonderful attributes for families, the beach, the countryside and Jurassic 
coasts to name only a few, this proposal will be detrimental to the area with environmental and wildlife 
implications. 
 

Page 127



We would also like to thank councillor Louie O`Leary for bringing this application to our attention. 

 

 

137.  
 
Hi 
 
I reside in Horyford close, Preston and object to the application for outdoor music and events 
including the sale of alcohol outside of licensing hours.  I would expect the council to recognise that 
this will contribute to noise pollution and the current licensing laws be respected and adhered to as is 
the status quo. 
 
I do not believe a change will benefit the park or the residential area.   
 
It will likely increase noise and anti social behaviour in unsocial hours. There is no need for this to 
happen, it is not necessary. 
 
Kind regards 

 

 

138.  
 
Dear Sir or Madam  
We are writing to register our objection to a licence for outdoor live music and outdoor  showing of  
films and events at Haven Holiday Park at Preston Road Weymouth .   
On the odd occasions that Haven have had outdoor events over the years , the sound has carried 
across to Telford Close easily.  We used to hear the music from the fairground in Bowleaze ( which is 
further away than Haven ) until they were ordered to reduce the volume . We also clearly hear 
loudspeakers when St Andrews have school fairs , which is also further away from us than Haven .so 
we are sure that we would hear the live music and outdoor events from our home.  
We feel that we live in harmony with the holiday camps at present but do not want to be disturbed by 
live music and outdoor showings of films etc . Haven is right in the middle of residential housing and 
we therefore feel that the granting of a licence would be to detriment of the local residents due to 
increased noise. Please therefore do not grant this licence .  
Kind Regards  

 

139.  

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

I am writing to register my objection to the application for a premises license by Haven Leisure 

Limited (Weymouth Bay Holiday Park, Preston Road, Weymouth, DY3 6BQ). The basis for this 

Page 128



opposition is that granting a license for these premises will not promote the licensing objectives, 

particularly the prevention of crime, disorder and antisocial behaviour and prevention of public 

nuisance. 

 

I believe it is fair to say Weymouth Bay holiday park already has its fair share of trouble, often 

requiring the police to be called - There are 6 said cases recorded in The Dorset Echo in the past 

couple of years; and even this week (beginning Monday 20th June 2022) I saw 3 police cars parked 

outside the reception. The application proposes that alcohol will be sold for consumption on the 

specified site premises between 11:00am and 11.00pm, seven days a week. Granting a license would 

provide a further source of alcohol at the site, which already has issues with drink driving and public 

disorder - The provision of this license will only fuel these problems. 

 

In addition, many residents in this area already suffer noise nuisance and antisocial behaviour at all 

hours of the day and night - Allowing an outdoor stage to play loud and anti-social music at the times 

specified on the license will only add to public nuisance - I feel as if a residential house was to play 

loud music until 11:00pm every night, it would be classed as anti-social. This license has asked for 

music to be played everyday for 62% of the year, with the majority of that being in the summer 

months when local residents are trying to enjoy peace and tranquility outside. It is totally 

unreasonable for this to happen. 

 

It is also worth noting that the nearest garden to the proposed site for the outdoor stage is only 80m 

away - This is way too close for any sound-lessening measures to have any effect. 

 

Also, there are approximately 456 residential houses within only a 500m radius of the proposed site, 

many with young children who should not be subjected to such sound pollution at late hours every 

day.  

 

In view of the above, I would urge the Licensing Authority to refuse the application. Many thanks for 

your cooperation. 

 

 

Best regards, 

 

 

 

140.  

 

To whom this may concern, 

 

I am writing on behalf of my mother who lives on Fisherbridge and she strongly objects to Haven 

Weymouth Bay License for the following reasons: 

 

Page 129



My mum lives directly behind the caravan site along the river Jordan and has done so for over 40 

years. She lives alone and enjoys the tranquility of her back garden and environment even still as 

Haven has substantially grown over the years, as with the noise. However with a stage, alcohol and 

music license for entertainment into the late evening throughout the week and weekend this will have 

a dramatic effect on her environment causing a great nuisance with noise pollution and wellbeing.  

 

Her enjoyment of listening to the birds singing in the evening as her day comes to a close and she 

goes to bed early would absolutely be changed forever, having a dramatic effect on her well- being. I 

can quite easily say this would also affect her neighbour who’s young child suffers from anxiety and I 

can only imagine the negative affect this disturbance in the evenings and night would cause him. 

Then there’s the older neighbour who enjoys her garden and the peace of her garden/conservatory in 

the evening.  

 

My mother also worries about the affect it will have on the wildlife in the area with the constant noise 

pollution and possible increase in litter. The river is very close and often used by tourist visiting the 

site as a short cut (area of entry is onto the waste land as the locals know it!) to the local shops exiting 

from Fisherbridge instead of going up to the church and down Preston road causing is a worry for 

public safety if tourist are consuming alcohol, possible increase in litter and deteriorate of the river 

bank. 

 

I would also like to point out that the public notice for the planning proposal was placed in a field not in 

clear visible sight for locals nor in a place of high local public traffic, meaning that very few people got 

to view it. This to me speaks for its self about the company representatives of Haven dealing with the 

local public knowing full well it would not be seen by many. This type of action makes me feel that the 

company only has its interests at heart, does not have honourable employees and is not to be trusted. 

 

I sincerely appreciate your time and I really hope you take these points into consideration. 

 

141. 
 
 Dear Sirs  
We are writing to strongly object to the proposal by the Haven Holiday Park Preston Weymouth for an 
outdoor music and events license . If music were to be permitted outdoors the sounds would not be 
confined to the Park’s boundaries but would be distributed by the various winds to the neighbouring 
properties and beyond. Sounds also travel greater distances in the evening and at night. This is a 
quiet residential area where people wish to enjoy the tranquility of their homes and gardens. 
If visitors to the Haven Park wish for entertainment there are many facilities already provided which 
are indoor and where sounds are contained. 
Yours faithfully.  
 

 

 

 

Page 130



142.  

 

Licence application by The Haven Weymouth Bay Holiday Park 

Objection Summary. 

We wish to object to the Licence application by The Haven Weymouth Bay 

Holiday Park, and have our views noted to the Dorset Council Meeting, 

regarding their proposal. 

We strongly object to the proposal for amplified music, films and general 

entertainment at the Haven Bay Holiday Park every day from 11am- 

11pm, April to October. We have experienced excessive noise pollution 

from other local establishments in the past which has been unacceptable. 

We are also concerned about the potential for plastic and general rubbish 

in the local environment including these products being disposed of in the 

sea. Finally, the potential for drunk and disorderly conduct may increase, 

and the availability of overstretched police resources to respond quickly to 

diffuse and disperse such issues. 

Licence Application “Communication” 

How has this Licence Application been communicated to the wider 

impacted communities? Considering age variances and access to social 

media, etc. 

1. Has it been communicated in the local press for example, or 

impacted residents written too? As the impacted locals are 

predominately elderly and therefore may not be computer or social 

media literate, they may not be aware of this application nor its 

impact, and cannot voice their opinion or any concerns they may 

have. 

Monitoring and Enforcement Plans 

1. Section M, mentions regulated entertainment, will there be any nonregulated use of the proposed 

facility? 

2. Any issues with non-holiday park residential attendees at your other 

Venues? 

a. Has this this been considered, what are the mitigation plans 

and actions? 

3. The proposal mentions ‘Actions’ will be taken in numerous places. I 

assume Action Plans are in place at other Holiday Parks? 

a. What are these actions and the remedies that will be taken 

b. Who is specifically responsible and accountable for these 

actions, timelines for these actions to be completed, and 

documented notification that they are completed satisfactorily. 

c. Also what is the escalation process, and timeframes, if the 

actions are not carried out or completed satisfactorily, or staff 

have issues implementing the action plan. Something the 

Council will be requiring I’m sure? 

4. One for the Council – Documented process/procedures of actions to 

be taken, i.e. liability or penalties against the Holiday Park if there 

were to be any Breech of any of the promises or action plan. 

Sound Technology, Other Venues or Holiday Parks 

1. Directional Speaker Technology, can you explain what this is and 

how it works? 

a. Provide Environmental Agency measurement benchmarks, 

and local residents concerns or complaints evidence from your 

other Haven sites 

2. Other Venues or Holiday Parks? 

a. How many other venues are using this technology/extended 

entertainment approach? 

Page 131



b. How long have they been in operation? 

c. How many complaints have there been?, and the nature of 

the complaints? 

d. Data on; the dates, frequency and nature of the various 

entertainments that have taken place at each of the other 

venues? 

e. Attendance at each event? As expected or excessive? 

f. Can you provide a summary of the “Lessons Learnt” from 

these other Venues? 

Licence Compromise 

We do need to agree a compromise with Haven on this issue. To achieve 

this the Councils should undertake a consensus or ballot of options for 

residents to select their preference. These options, between April and 

October, might include 5 outside events, or one or 2 Saturday evenings 

per month, etc… 

Regards 

 

 

143.  

 

Sir/Madam 

We don't object in principle in granting Haven an outdoor license,however we would expect the 

following to be addressed before the application is granted. 

 

Wind direction is predominantly from the South ( West /East) consequently any sound will be heard 

further in land into the local residential area. 

 

 Many local residents of Preston have friends and family buried in the church grounds, such areas are 
considered to be a special place for quiet contemplation. In this regard the Dorset Council should 
value such places and protect them from intrusion.from excessive noise - similarly with Weddings and 
Funerals. Consequently noise should be kept within the Haven site boundary.  
Regards 

 

 

144.  
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
I would like to raise an objection to the Haven Leisure Ltd license application for Weymouth Bay 
Holiday Park. 
 
I believe that the license proposed for the container bar and outdoor stage would lead to an 
intolerable level of noise together with a real risk of anti-social behaviour. 
 

Page 132



The council may remember that all three of Haven's local resorts were closed last July following 
"noise and unruly behaviour by some guests, with a number of alleged serious offences reported to 
the police", as reported in the echo.  It is difficult to imagine how an outside bar license will help avoid 
similar behaviour. 
 
I would also like to point out that the village of Preston is a village that contains a holiday resort, not 
the other way around. There has been a long period of peaceful co-existence between the park and 
local residents but I believe that granting a license will shatter that relationship leading to very many 
complaints. 
 
Kind regards 
 

 
Preston, Weymouth 
 

 

145.  

 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

 

I am writing to express my strong objection to the above mentioned plans for Haven to commence 

outdoor events.  

 

We live in Brookside Close having moved here just under four years ago, previously residing in the 

Weymouth area for twelve years prior to that. As you are probably aware, this area sits neatly 

between two Haven sites. We chose this location as it is peaceful, scenic and safe for our children.  

 

Our children are 9 and 7; one has autism and a sensory processing disorder, meaning he can be 

greatly impacted by over stimulation as a result of noise for example. Regardless of our sons 

additional needs, both our children (and us) need to be able to rest/ sleep at a sensible time in the 

evening. Others may be on holiday, however we still have school and demanding jobs. My husband is 

self employed and works extremely hard and I hold a senior position within a local Critical Care Unit.  

 

I also have an existing chronic medical condition to take into consideration, which is exacerbated by 

lack of rest and stress.  

 

Within our close there are other children of similar age, elderly generations, nightshift workers and 

domestic animals, all of whom would be deeply affected.  

 

We take great pleasure in spending time in our garden and encouraging wildlife. Very occasionally we 

are disturbed by noise from the holiday parks’ entertainment and that is with it being indoors- noise 

travels extremely well in this area. I cannot imagine how hideous it would be if we were subjected to 

increased levels of noise from outdoor stages.  

Page 133



 

In summary, this would have a huge impact on our daily lives and would cause high levels of stress, 

anxiety and psychological harm. We do not on any level support this application.  

 

I look forward to an update on this application at your soonest convenience.  

 

Kind regards, 

 

 

 

146.   

 

Dear Councillors 

 

  I'm strongly against the application from Weymouth  Bay Holiday Park for.a licence for outdoor 

  music.I live on Brunel Drive and we can hear a lot of noise from the park already. Preston is a  

   residentaial area if you grant this application it will affect the resident's  wellbeing. 

   

     Kind regards

 

 

147.  
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
I wish to raise an objection to the licence application made by Haven Leisure for the Weymouth Bay 
caravan park.  
 
The proposed outdoor entertainment area and licensed bar will create a public nuisance to the 
surrounding residential area. My home is very close to the proposed location for this development and 
will be adversely affected by the increased noise level. 
 
We have experienced high noise levels from previous outdoor events at the location proposed, 
however these were occasional one-off daytime events. Regular daytime and evening outdoor 
entertainment, alongside large gatherings of holidaymakers consuming alcohol will certainly create a 
significant disturbance over the many months planned. This will undoubtedly negatively affect my 
family life, our work/life balance and the use of our own garden, resulting in a loss of our much 
appreciated private amenity. 
 
Yours sincerely,

Page 134



Weymouth 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 135



 

148. 

 

Page 136



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 137



149. 

 

 

 

150.  

 

Sent: 23 June 2022 16:28 

Subject: License application - P/FUL/2022/01431 

Page 138



 

Dear Sirs 

 

I wish to object to the above licence application, P/FUL/2022/01431, by Haven Leisure Ltd for an 

outdoor stage for music, cinema etc., and for the sale of alcohol. 

 

The application is for amplified music, cinema etc. from 9 am to 9pm/11pm for seven days per week 

for over seven months of the year spring/summer/ early autumn. 

 

My main objection is about the noise disturbance that I will suffer when in my garden, and in my home 

with the windows open.  I expect to have the benefit of quiet enjoyment of my property without the 

obvious disturbance that this proposed addition to the campsite will cause. 

 

Weymouth Bay Holiday Park has ample facilities for the entertainment of their guests without the 

need to provide more out of doors.  Holiday makers at the site also have opportunities to visit 

Weymouth or local pubs for entertainment.  I would hope that the local Councils would help to support 

these other local businesses. 

 

Preston is very much a residential area and the residents, who pay not insubstantial amounts of 

Council Tax, should be looked after properly by all Councillors that represent them and are elected to 

protect their interests. 

 

I hope that the Council will do the right thing and reject this application. 

 

Sincerely  

 

 

 

151.  

 

Hi 

 

We have recently been made aware of the outdoor music licence application for Haven holiday park 

and have concerns should this be granted. 

 

Page 139



We purposely moved to a quiet area as have stressful emergency service jobs which we work shifts 

for. This is so we can sleep during the day and/or night.  

 

When Weymouth Bay Haven have their opening owners entertainment at the beginning of the 

season, it is very loud and can be heard from our house very clearly. Not only can we hear the loud 

music, but also the noise of the people shouting and singing etc. This is tolerated as it does not 

happen very often. However the neighbouring houses moan about the loud noise. 

 

Should a permanent licence be agreed, this will cause a real nuisance in our area and will interfere 

with our sleep after busy long shifts. It will be very noisy and will make a huge difference to our lives. 

We write to you to advise you that we object to the outdoor licence application due to the noise of the 

entertainment and also the alcohol fuelled ASB that comes along with it. 

 

Kind regards 

 

 

152. 

 

 Re: Application by Haven Leisure Limited for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing 

Act 2003 

I would like to object to the above application primarily on the grounds of the prevention of a public 
nuisance. 

The proposed stage site is very close to houses on Fisherbridge Road and sound would easily travel 
to Horyford Close as well. The creation of noise seven days and nights a week for eight months of the 
year would be an intolerable intrusion into the lives of local residents. 

A particular threat to the normally quiet nature of the area is posed by plans to show films three nights 
a week until 11.00 pm. Amplified sound for these events will be very intrusive, especially with the 
special effects on film soundtracks, and people are likely to be prevented from enjoying spending time 
in their gardens, or indoors with windows open, undisturbed. 

Amplified music through an in-house sound system every night until 9.00 pm is likely to be similarly 
disruptive. 

The application’s inclusion of “Live music limited to vocalists and acoustic sets” does not adequately 
describe the planned activity. Will the vocalists be singing to recorded and amplified backing tracks, 
which are essentially the sound of a full band? Acoustic sets may feature acoustic instruments but 
they will presumably still be amplified with the sound audible over a PA system. 

Also, Section H, “Anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)” fails to describe 
the entertainment that would be provided, merely repeating the section description. 

Without a test event to demonstrate the levels of noise that could be expected, local residents are 
unable to make a fully informed objection to these proposals. But it seems beyond doubt that such 
relentless outdoor entertainment at all hours of the day and night for much of the year will cause a 
serious public nuisance.  

Page 140



An objection could also be made on the basis of protection of children from harm as the health of 
young children would suffer if they were unable to get sufficient sleep because of noise late into every 
evening. 

I hope you will consider the undoubted harm and nuisance that will be caused to local residents and 
reject this application. 

 
 

 

 

153.  

 

Dear Sir/Madam 

 

Having heard that Haven have submitted an application for a license for outdoor music and events, 

including the sale of alcohol, we wish to submit our objection to this application being considered. 

 

We live in Marley Close and already have to put up with noise and music from the Bridge Inn, 

Springhead and existing events that are held by the holiday camps.  Sound travels easily especially in 

the evenings so a further increase in events would prove really disruptive to residents in the affected 

areas of Preston. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

154.  
 
To whom it may concern, 
 
I am, and have been a resident of Fisherbridge Road for 16 years and I had hoped to be one for a 
long time to come.  
 

Page 141



However; because of this application by Haven Holiday Park, I feel that I must object to the Haven 
Holiday park application for a license for outdoor music. 
 
I feel that given the amount of substantial entertainment already within the setting (which can already 
be heard from an indoor venue in most of Preston) it is unnecessary to have loud music outside and 
will be a public nuisance to residential homes close by to the park.  
 
I appreciate and understand their struggles with Covid, but we all have all struggled.  Many 
businesses need to catch up on this loss of revenue, but an outside bar, serving alcohol to adults with 
young children that sits right next to a step banked river as well an extreme close proximity to (on the 
most part) elderly/retired population is selfish, unnecessary and anti-social.  
 
Kind Regards 

 

 

155. 
 
 Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Concerning the Licensing Application for Outdoor Music at the Haven Holiday Park in Preston, I 
object very strongly to it being allowed. My garden backs onto the Park and the noise coming from it 
would be totally unacceptable. 
 
Yours Sincerely, 
 

 

 

156.  
 
Haven Holiday Park application for licence for outdoor music, and events for the sale of alcohol with 
varying times 
 
I wish to register my objection to this application.  

 

 

157.  

 

Dear Sir/Madam,  

  

We wish to object to the approval of the premise licence for the stage and outdoor bar at Weymouth 

Bay Holiday Park, Haven. We object on the grounds of public nuisance, public safety, danger of harm 

to children and an increase in crime and disorder.  

  

Public nuisance  

Page 142



The proposed stage is very close to our road, with the closest house being approx. 70 metres from it. 

From past events that have been held on the same site, we have experienced very loud singing and 

comperes using a PA system. Our neighbours include many elderly residents, an increasing number of 

working aged people (now working from home) and young families. In our road alone we have at least 

2 dozen children whose homework and bedtimes/sleep will be affected by the daily length and 

frequency of the proposed hours of entertainment. We do not want to have to have our windows closed 

permanently on hot summers days and nights to try and block out the noise coming from singing, music, 

films, foul language, and the PA system on stage. The proposed stage may point away from us, but the 

wind direction plays a huge part in the amount of music and general noise we can hear even with the 

windows shut. You only have to hear the music from the Spice Ship Pub to know how far that travels. 

Thankfully, the pub is restricted with regards to the number of live music events they have per year, and 

we know when to expect them. If Haven's request is approved, we would suggest similar restrictions on 

the frequency of live music and events they are allowed per year. Even with their promise of no bands 

and only acoustic, the music from recorded music playing or a PA system and singers are still a 

nuisance, especially with the frequency requested in the application.  

  

Regarding the promise that Weymouth Bay Holiday Park, Haven, will log all complaints and work with 

residents, their actions to date leave us very sceptical. A few neighbours who can see caravans at the 

end of their garden were recently invited to a meeting. Had the invitation been extended to all who could 

hear the caravan park, rather than a few who can see it, they would have had more than 2 people turn 

up. Myself and my husband would have attended, along with numerous others. In “the prevention of 

crime and disorder” section of the application, the applicant mentions keeping a “noise incident log” and 

giving local residents a contact telephone number and email address for “local nearby residents”. Who 

do Haven consider local and nearby if they only invite handful of residents who are within sight of a 

caravan to a meeting? How are we supposed to believe anything will be logged and that anyone 

complaining will be treated with respect? When residents have complained to Weymouth Bay about the 

music near their entrance, they’ve had the phone put down on them.  

   

Referring to the specifics of Haven’s Application for a Premises Licence for the Outdoor Stage and 

Container Bar Area, we note that the date of their application is listed as 26/05/2022. There was already 

an Environmental Health Consultation Response by Jane Williams, Team Leader, Environmental 

Protection (West) dated 24/03/2022 in response to the original Planning Application for the new Stage, 

Bar and activities. This states that there should be “recommended conditions and [/] or modifications”, 

and the findings she has listed from talking to the representatives on the park, are vastly different to 

what has been requested in the Premises Licence Application submitted 2 months later. In addition to 

the hours applied for being longer and more frequent than what was told to Jane Williams, the 

application also fails to take into account any of the recommendations she has made. They have been 

given an inch and taken a mile. This does not fill us with confidence in Haven’s future cooperation with 

residents or adherence to any rules or restrictions imposed on them.  

   

At the moment, aside from a little background noise from the main road, the only regular sound all day 

are the birds singing. To permit the use of the Outdoor Stage and Container Bar Area for the hours that 

have been applied for, would ruin the tranquil environment the inhabitants of Preston live in. Most 

residents live here because of this tranquillity. It would be a great shame not to be able to hear the birds 

singing because of the constant background noise, 7 days a week, 11am until 11pm.  

   

Danger of harm to children  

   

Page 143



Aside from the risk that holiday makers might feel it is appropriate to leave their children in the caravans 

to sleep while they go to the bar/stage to have a drink and listen to music, there is also the health and 

wellbeing of local resident children to consider. How will they be able to get to sleep, or concentrate on 

homework while there is constant background noise? 11pm, or even 9pm is too late within a residential 

area, not even just for the houses, but the caravans too, especially 7 days per week. We object to our 

children being subjected to the soundtrack of something that’s not age related.  

   

Crime and disorder  

   

The sale of alcohol from 11am until 11pm in the middle of a residential park and children’s play area is 

concerning. At the moment the consumption of alcohol at the Weymouth Bay site is spread throughout 

the park in individual caravans, or at the central indoor entertainment area. There is a reason the 

residents of the Preston area of Weymouth choose to live here rather than in town. The proposed stage 

and bar area is situated near a Public Right of Way. In “The prevention of crime and disorder” box, the 

applicant only really mentions keeping a log of refusal to serve alcohol to people. How do Haven intend 

to restrict this area to residents of the park and prevent people from bringing excessive amounts of their 

own alcohol to sit there all day? Excessive alcohol consumption increases noise and antisocial 

behaviour. It would be akin to the street having a party or a neighbour having a BBQ with hundreds of 

guests, all day every day.  

   

  

We have two young school aged children, and we sometimes complete some of our work from home. 

We live in a part of Fisherbridge Road where you wouldn’t know you were surrounded by caravans 

because the other houses block the view of them. Anyone arguing that the caravan site was here before 

the houses, needs to check the stages of expansion that the caravan park has gone through, and the 

application timeline for additions such as this. Caravan parks can be peaceful and family friendly. We 

hope this is not the start of degradation from a peaceful family holiday park to an Ibiza staycation where 

the clientele changes. We live on a fabulous part of the Dorset Jurassic Coast with a town rich in history. 

We have an underutilised 9 screen cinema, and the streets are populated with an extraordinary number 

of pubs, clubs and bars, more than most towns. Surely an extra bar and stage on site would be 

detrimental to the local economy rather than any benefit?  

   

In conclusion, we don’t want to be killjoys, and we appreciate the desire for holiday makers to sit back 

and relax with a drink at the end of the day while the kids play. What we don’t appreciate is the expanse 

of time the Premises Licence Application lists for activities involving a stage and PA system. Never mind 

that it will be vocalists and acoustic sets, I presume they will still have microphones! We’d probably 

prefer an occasional band, then day in day out vocalists. Surely there can be a compromise? Haven 

have not been open and honest about their intensions. They should have consulted with more residents 

to seek a result that is acceptable to everyone like restricting the days it can be used and reasonable 

times. They should be working with local residents.   

   

Yours sincerely  

   

   

Page 144



 

158.  

 

I live in Wainwright Close in Preston and noise from the Haven Holiday Park would definitely be heard 

from here. This is a nice, peaceful area of Weymouth and I would like it to stay that way. 

 
I therefore  wish to register my objection to the license application. 

 
 

159.  
 
Hello, 
 
I wish to object to the above application. I live close to the Preston Road Holiday park and the noise 
will impact on us and my young family. I see they are requesting 7 days a week between 11 and 9pm. 
That is ridiculous and will impact local residents who are already paying extortionate Council Tax. 
 
Regards  

 

 

 

160.

Dear

I am objecting to P/FUL/2022/0431 on the following grounds.

1.As a resident that abuts the Weymouth Bay holiday park, the license they are applying for would cause a public nuisance. The 
park is completely surrounded by residential houses and I consider this to be an infringement of my privacy from the extra noise it 
will create.
To apply for a licence that allows a stage to be built and a wide variety of entertainment for up to 8 months of the year from 11am to 
11pm is not acceptable.
2. The Park already has a drinking license to serve alcohol inside. I can see no need to extend this to a further licence for outside.
3.Alcohol will be available 24/7 for on and off consumption. As this is meant to be a family friendly site, surely this does not run 
parallel with the caravan's ethos?
4.It is meant for residents only but as there is a public right of way running alongside this field, anyone could attend. Why create 
problems not only to  local residents but families staying there with small children?
5. The park promotes the benefit of local flora, fauna and wildlife and has a David Bellamy Woodland Walk running very close by to 
this suggested site. This surely will disrupt wildlife from their own habitat.
6.There was no liaison with local residents ( except for 13 letters ) as to what might work for outside entertainment.
7. This is a directive that has been issued by Head Office to cover carte blanche all of their numerous sites up and down the country.
Many of these  sites are nowhere near residential houses. This fact should have been taken into account.

I attended the Council Meeting last week and will also be writing to Dorset Council and attending the next meeting.

I hope that the many objectives sent in by local residents will be taken into consideration.
Thank you.
Yours sincerely Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190


	Agenda
	1 Election of Chairman and Statement for the Procedure of the Meeting
	5 Application for a New Premises Licence for part of Weymouth Bay Holiday Park
	Appendix 1.1 - APPLICATION FORM_Redacted
	Appendix 1.2  Site
	Appendix 2.1 Original Plan
	Appendix 2.2 Revised Plan
	Appendix 3 - Conditions
	Appendix 4 - Representations received from 'Other Persons'_Redacted_Redacted
	From: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/noise-and-vibration-management-environmental-permits/noise-and-vibration-management-environmental-permits (January 2022)
	67.
	From:   Graham Embley – 15 Holcombe Close, Preston, Weymouth DT3 6RR
	150.
	Sent: 23 June 2022 16:28 Subject: License application - P/FUL/2022/01431

	Appendix 5 - Disclosure Bundle


